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Chairman’s
Statement
EFHEHES

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am
pleased to present to shareholders the
annual report of VST Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2015.

FANBERRESEARIAMARZEAERERL
A(Fx27)EEANBAR (GBI AEE)BE
E-AF+T-RA=T-HLEFEZFER-

[t has been a challenging year for the global economy. The IT landscape has
again been fast changing. However, the Group has recorded another record
high in revenue. The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015
was HK$45,575,640,000 (2014: HK$41,892,709,000). Gross profit for the
year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to HK$1,697,001,000 (2014:
HK$1,672,674,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
amounted to HK$450,381,000 (2014: HK$625,668,000). The decrease was
mainly due to the depreciation of Asia’s currencies against the US dollar.
Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
HK29.94 cents (2014: HK40.59 cents) per share.

In the vigorously competitive [T market, the Company maintained growth
momentum, especially achieving robust growth in Enterprise Systems
segment. During the year, revenue from the Distribution segment increased
by 1.39% to HK$30,999,674,000, contributing 68.02% of the total Group
revenue. Revenue from the Enterprise Systems segment increased by
29.52% to HK$14,377,680,000, contributing 31.55% of the total Group
revenue, mainly driven by higher sales of servers, networking hardware and
software products. Revenue from IT services remained stable at
HK$198,286,000, contributing 0.44% of the total Group revenue.
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Geographically, both North Asia and South East Asia performed well in the
year ended 31 December 2015. During the year, revenue generated in North
Asia increased by 10.85% to HK$36,798,568,000, contributing 80.74% of
the total Group revenue. The growth was mainly from the increased sales of
servers, networking hardware and software products. Revenue from South
East Asia increased by 0.92% to HK$8,777,072,000, contributing 19.26% of
the total Group revenue. The growth was mainly attributable to higher sales of
Enterprise Systems services, networking hardware and software products.

The Group achieved another stellar results in 2015 which was attributable not
only to enhancing the Enterprise Systems segment, but also due to
expanding our product line by successfully acquiring more products in the
consumer electronics sector, which included obtaining Huawei wearable
devices exclusive distributorship in China and Huawei smartphones
distributorship in China and South East Asia, DJI Camera drones
distributorship in China and Xiaomi MiPad distributorship in South East Asia.
In addition, the Group penetrated Kids Safety Wearable products and
became the distributor of Sogou Teemo wearable devices in China. In
November 2015, the Group signed a B2B strategic agreement with Alibaba
Group to become a strategic partner of Alibaba and offer our all-rounded
supply chain services.

Leveraging on our diversified products and strong distribution network, the
Group continued to build on the success of our wide ranging portfolio of
products. Meanwhile, our distribution channels in Asia Pacific were
strengthened by venturing into emerging countries which include Cambodia,
Myanmar and Laos. The Group has strong distribution networks with over
35,000 business partners in nine countries, covering China, Thailand,
Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia, Cambodia, Myanmar, Laos and the
Philippines. Besides, our businesses have also extended from the distribution
of IT products for the commercial and consumer markets to the provision of
enterprise systems tools for [T infrastructure, training, maintenance and
support services. Our diversified product lines include HP, Apple, Seagate,
AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco,
Asus and many more.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHREE (B

PROSPECTS

Facing the ever-changing IT industry, the Group will continue to control costs,
enhance profitability, constantly look for breakthroughs and build up the long
term competitiveness to stay ahead of the market. In addition to the
expansion of mobile internet products, storage solutions and cloud
computing, the Group will also provide the 020 (Offline-to-Online) services to
corporate customers and consumers through the integration and innovation
of advanced information technologies including internet, end-to-end solutions
and mega data.

From our well-established relationships with vendors, sizeable regional
network, rigorous internal processes and strong management team, the
Company is set to reach even newer heights. Despite the evolving industry
and various challenges posed by market conditions, the Group will still be
able to maintain its robust growth. In addition to the expansion into emerging
markets in South East Asia, the Group will increase our market share in
countries such as Indonesia and China and put greater effort in stepping up
value-added services such as the Enterprise Systems business thus
enhancing profitability.

I ' would like to thank our shareholders for their loyal support for the Group. |
would also like to take this opportunity to express my deepest gratitude to all
of our staff for their whole-hearted devotion and passion towards their duties
and to thank our Board members and business partners for their trust and
support. We are confident in overcoming various challenges ahead and will
make the best effort to maximise returns for our shareholders.

Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Business Model and Strategic Direction

The Group is a leading Information, Communication and Technology (“ICT”)
products and services provider, serving a wide regional customer base. The
Group has 81 offices in nine countries namely China, Thailand, Malaysia,
Singapore, Indonesia, Philippines, Cambodia, Myanmar and Laos. The three
main businesses are Distribution, Enterprise Systems and T Services. The
Enterprise Systems segment designs, installs and implements IT infrastructure
for companies, while the IT Services segment provides a comprehensive
range of professional, technical support and training services. Leading IT
vendors such as HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo,
Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more use the
Group’s network of over 35,000 channel partners in the region to distribute
their products.

As the leading distributor of ICT products in the region, we have established,
through our reseller channel, a broad customer base ranging from individuals,
small and medium enterprises to large corporations and government entities
who have been serviced by our regional resellers over the past 25 years.

Our infrastructure is built on a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
system to manage our sales, distribution, finance and logistic operations to
provide efficient customer services with speed and reliability.

We have an extensive distribution network of over 35,000 resellers,
comprising retailers, system integrators and corporate dealers. These
resellers not only market a wide range of products but they also provide
support and repair services to the end-users.

The Group creates sustainable value for shareholders through the following
strategies:

° Focus on our key markets in China and South East Asia

° Focus on our extensive list of vendors to expand our product portfolio
° Focus on strengthening our working capital and financial management
° Focus on improving operating efficiencies and cost management
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DM

Business Review

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
HK$45,575,640,000 (2014: HK$41,892,709,000). The Group has shown
stability in the Distribution segment, where sales of consumer products
remain stable. In the Enterprise Systems segment, we have seen growth in
sales of servers, networking hardware and software products.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
HK$1,697,001,000 (2014: HK$1,672,674,000). Operating profit for the year
ended 31 December 2015 amounted to HK$677,069,000 (2014:
HK$843,897,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
amounted to HK$450,381,000 (2014: HK$625,668,000). Basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to HK29.94 cents (2014:
HK40.59 cents) per share.

The Group has continuously aimed to widen our product range in order to
provide more choices to our customers. Our extensive and diversified product
lines now include HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo,
Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks, including
some which are specific to the Group or the industries in which the Group
operates as well as others that are common to most if not all other
businesses. The directors have established a policy to ensure that significant
risks which may adversely affect the Group’s performance and ability to
deliver on its strategies, as well as those which may present positive
opportunities, are identified, reported, monitored, and managed on a
continuous basis.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are shown
in note 3 to the financial statements.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors and management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group. During the
year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
Regular and continuous communication with our suppliers, customers and
other stakeholders are carried out through regular meetings, conferences,
and promotional events.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BB W R D (&)

Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintain the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable development of its
business. The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in
relation to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced
cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality products and
services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable development.

Prospects

Our extensive portfolio of products will enable us to continue to drive growth
for the Group. We will continue to execute strategies to increase market
shares as well as the range of products offered. This will enable the Group to
continue to focus on growth in both the Distribution and Enterprise Systems
segments.

Our strategy remains to constantly redefine our value proposition as a trusted
partner with strong relationships and deep understanding of our customers’
needs. Strategically we will continue to expand in China and South East Asia.
We will continue to work actively to improve internal operational and financial
efficiencies to improve margins. We will also continue to expand our business
into mobility devices and cloud computing.

With our experienced and dedicated management team, we are confident
that we will be able to continue to grow our business.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$3,233,727,000 (2014: approximately HK$1,495,111,000).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$5,621,014,000 (2014: approximately HK$3,557,276,000).
The gearing ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents
divided by total equity, was 0.63 (2014: 0.52).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group recorded total current assets of
approximately HK$15,771,714,000 (2014: approximately HK$12,237,737,000)
and total current liabilities of approximately HK$11,930,811,000 (2014:
approximately HK$9,092,165,000). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the total current assets by the total current liabilities, was
approximately 1.32 times as at 31 December 2015 (2014: approximately 1.35
times).

The Group recorded a slight decrease in shareholders’ funds from
approximately HK$3,992,958,000 as at 31 December 2014 to approximately
HK$3,819,107,000 as at 31 December 2015.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BB W R D (&)

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank deposits of the Group are mainly denominated in United
States dollars, Renminbi and Singapore dollars.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,

United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand baht and
Indonesian rupiah.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had property, plant and equipment held
under finance leases and a building pledged against a secured mortgage loan
as set out in notes 5 and 18 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BB W& D (&)

Employees EE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 2,535 (2014: 2,300) full tme W-_ZE—AF+-A=+—H ~A&E@EH2,535
employees. Z(ZE—MEF :2300%) 2 RES -

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry practice, AEBTIEZRBEERNFHR BAAXRBLELESR
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration, M ERE XN FHFM - BREKFTEIN - ME 2R
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible AEBZ EZHEERBARBARBERE EBKE
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual E®REMWIEEL N ERE - HMEF BIEE
performance. Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement & - FBR &R EKFE - RBEE-_ZT—AF+
schemes. The net total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December — A =+—HB It EX N2 A& FmHE
2015 amounted to approximately HK$467,454,000 (2014: approximately 467,454,000 7T (=& — MU 4F : £9415,243,000
HK$415,243,000). The Group also provides training courses or seminars to 8 70) ° AN B Jf A H B T 12 4 5 5| 5% 12 sk 47

o

its staff. e
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Corporate Governance Report
P EERRE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2015
and up to the date of this report.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) except for
some code provisions which are explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of its
business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of four Executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Ms. Chow Ying Chi

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Li
Mr. Liang Xin

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung
Mr. Lam Hin Chi

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors and at the same time representing at
least one-third of the Board with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflicts of interests and serving
on Board committees, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (B

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the Company Secretary of the Company, with a
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions being entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Functions

In order to meet higher standards of the corporate governance requirements,
the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
Code and disclosures in this report.
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Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out below:
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EExEega
EFEHREBRALREHIE
REBEE-_Z—RHF+_A=+—HLFE
A ESFHREFEREZBEREINDT :

Attendance/

Number of Meetings
Directors B2=E HE " BITEBERY
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Jialin FEMKEE 4/4
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William FREITEE 4/4
Ms. Chow Ying Chi FREELZT 4/4
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau BRI % A& 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Liu Li Bl 2+ 4/4
Mr. Liang Xin RSk E 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Li Wei FREEE 4/4
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung RAELAE 4/4
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBLE 4/4

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda for each meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are served
to all Directors in accordance with the Code before the meetings.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting
or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and, when
necessary, other committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance
and other major aspects of the Company.

FRFRANBITHN
BEAEHMARSRERZERAE R
ERASBRTES - EEGERABREN G
RETHREDBES -

ZREMBEFEXHERMAER THEA
FERMRNBEFEERAZECTERMNED
BRREZREFT SEFTHARAZIEN
BREBBGOR  RESELABRE -EF
ELBREENTNERERANESREERE
BB

ARBTHAR BRVBEERARWE
—ReLEMAEEHEEFEERN(NER
E)VHEMEZEEEERH URAKRAR 2 EZBHE
B -MBREHAEE EAEAMR LEER
HMBERTHERLER -

BHERERAT —ZET—AFFHR 19



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (B

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will
be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.

General Meetings

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
non-executives directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Li Jialin, Ms. Liu Li
and Mr. Liang Xin, were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 19 May 2015 due to other important engagements. All
other directors attended the 2015 annual general meeting to answer
questions an collect views of shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The current Chairman and CEO of the Company is Mr. Li Jialin. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same person
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the Directors and
the management of the Company and considers that this structure will enable
the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and effectively. The
Directors will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations
of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific months
of notice in writing. Under the service agreements, the initial annual
emoluments of each Executive Director is fixed and the remuneration payable
to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each year.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment of
Directors and assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the
Board regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry out
the selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Chan Hoi Chau, Ms. Liu Li and Mr. Ng Yat Cheung will retire from office and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. Ms. Liu Li and Mr. Ng Yat Cheung will retire
as a Non-executive Director and an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company respectively with effect from the conclusion of the forthcoming
annual general meeting and will not offer themselves for re-election.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (B

In accordance with Article 86(2) of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a Director either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the existing Board.
Subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the Board has proposed to appoint Mr.
Li Yue and Mr. Yao Jie as the Executive Directors of the Company and Mr.
Hung Wai Man and Mr. Wang Xiaolong as the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company with effect from the conclusion of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

The Board has recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election and appointment of new directors at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company. The Company’s circular contains detailed
information of the Directors proposed to be re-elected or appointed.

Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company continuously updates Directors on the legal and regulatory
developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars or reading relevant materials
and provided a record of training they received during the year to the
Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under the section of “Corporate Information” of this
annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@ To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures.

(d)  To review arrangements which employees of the Company can use to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE (A)

EEZEY

%M%ﬁﬁ&k%éég'xm |
BzRE&HBE ARBMBEEZEEY
%EZEE%F“I&4°

BREZEZEQ R OREY RBIIFNTT

EE MBEFZEEZEIREKEREH
RARFERIABER]—EA -

BEEZEQE kfﬁ%%ﬁ%@”&%Z%
B UWAAEEBRATEEGEENRE S8
VEEER - %%EEZIK AFHE -

BEREEY

EREZEeR-RBUIFNTEFT(BE %
AEBEENEXERIARBEEN G M
MMM BERERZBIIFATES) AKX -
BEBEZZEGZNE AR AREINEZ
BRI ZAIERRA -
ERZEGZIZREBETIRE:
@ REXEZEHNEHMBHERREBS
I Z B A AR & AD sk SMS A2 BAD 4R
ZEREBERSASHEER -

b) RB2ERHEMAETZIE REZE
P B2 BS AT i SR AR A e B 51 B A BAD 2 7]
WERE UREE BERERIMER
BEAEEgRIEERZS

© BIXRBZUBEBRGIE - AFEEE
HEREBREEHEUALBHEERFZS
RARABY -

O R‘EARFEREARPEER  ARFE
2R HMEEARELENTETRREY
BE A e 2Bk o

BHERERAT —ZT—RFFHR 23



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBE ()

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December
2015 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings is set out
below:

BEREEG ZBEHE TN A DR
RS o

RBE-_Z—RAF+-_A=+—HLFE
AN BRZEEERITMALEHE  UEHUK
XERBRE VKRB RERERF  WHEEIN
HEAZ 2R o

BRI EEREERZEEER 2B RAEI W
T

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HEBITEERE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman) EEBLE (FE) 2/2
Mr. Li Wei ESepitad 2/2
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung REELEE 2/2

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2015 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for development remuneration policy;
reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; reviewing and
approving termination compensation, dismissal or removal compensation
arrangements, and ensuring that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2015 to review (a) whether the remuneration packages of the
directors and senior management are reasonable; and (b) the basis of the
remuneration packages, i.e. qualification, working experience and market
level of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed to
be made.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The attendance of individual members at the Remuneration
Committee meeting is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HE I BITEERE

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) ZREE(ERE) 11
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung RAELE 171
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBEAE 11

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become board members, assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executives Directors, and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Nomination Committee meeting has been held during the year ended 31
December 2015 for reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (B

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director as chairman,
and three Independent Non-executive Directors as members. The attendance
of individual members at the Nomination Committee meeting is set out below:

REZBEEER RUTESFHAEIRE=
HBUFATESHERE - BRHKELE
REZEEZZBERHEINIWT

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HE/BOTEBERE

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman) EEMEE (EE) A
Mr. Li Wei FREEE A
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung RAESE 171
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBLE 11

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report”.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$4,805,000 and HK$957,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard shareholder investments and the Company’s assets, and
reviewing the effectiveness of such on a semi-annual basis through the Audit
Committee.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management.
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The management of the Company is responsible for establishing the Group’s
internal control framework, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The internal control framework also
provides for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic independent reviews on the
operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and risks,
develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified risks,
and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Directors have conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function as
well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing internal control system of the Group is effective and adequate.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meeting of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Unit 3312, 33/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary.

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (B

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to purpose new resolutions at
the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to purpose a
resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting by
following the procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Regarding the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director, please refer to the procedures available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of other Board committees, and the external
auditors, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings. To
safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’
meetings (other than on procedural and administrative matters) will be voted
by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website
at www.vst.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there had been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 54, is one of the founders of the
Group and is the Company’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director. Mr. Li is also
the director of VST Computers (H.K.) Limited (“VST
Computers”), a subsidiary of the Company. He is
responsible for the overall management and strategic
positioning of the Group. Mr. Li graduated from
Tsinghua University of the People’s Republic of China
with a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in 1983 and
a Master Degree in Management Engineering in 1986. Mr. Li is the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li, a Non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 44, is an Executive
Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Mr. Ong is also the director of VST
Computers, a subsidiary of the Company. He is
responsible for the overall financial management of the
Group. Mr. Ong holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics
from University College London and a Master Degree
in Analysis, Design & Management of Information
Systems from the London School of Economics and
Political Science. Mr. Ong is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. CHOW Ying Chi, aged 47, is an Executive
Director and the Group Chief Operating Officer of the
Company. Ms. Chow has been working with the
Group since 1996. Ms. Chow started working in
business development for the East and North China
region and was appointed as operation director of the
Company in 2002. Currently, Ms. Chow is the director
of VST Computers and ECS Technology (China)
Limited (“ECS China”), both are subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Chow is responsible for the overall
business operations and management of VST Computers, and operation
review and management of the development in ERP solution for ECS China.
Ms. Chow holds a Bachelor Degree of Arts (Honours) in International Business
from the University of Huddersfield in the United Kingdom.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
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Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 46, appointed as an BR#EMELE 46 R-_ZTTZNF+ AEEE
Executive Director of the Company in July 2009. He AN QB ITE S - 1&’ P B B g HT R o (5
holds a Bachelor Degree in Electrical Engineering from R ) KEER 2 ER TRE 4+ 2 (]

EITERB0F LK
2E B R A

the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the United [R%&E4ARNE A B & E8E
States of America. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of &y o [R5 AR AR QB B E

experience in personal computer and semiconductor EA B S RELEH—ERERE - R_F
industry. Mr. Chan is currently the Senior Vice & F 4 jn A Z 2 &) AT B % 4 ¥ £ Advanced
President — Product Management of VST Computers, ~ Micro Devices” D il 8 BETHARE AR

an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. 2 7 5% 75
Prior to joining the Company in 2005, Mr. Chan served
as the Distribution Director of Advanced Micro Devices and was in charge of

the distribution business in China and Hong Kong.

Non-Executive Directors FHITES

30 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Ms. LIU Li, aged 52, appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in June 2011. Ms. Liu was
one of the founders of the Group and had been
responsible for the overall operations of the Group’s
business in the mainland China from 1991 to 1999
before the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange
in 2002. Ms. Liu holds a bachelor degree in Beijing
Construction Engineering University. Ms. Liu is the
spouse of Mr. Li Jialin, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. LIANG Xin, aged 44, appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in December 2013.
Mr. Liang graduated with a Bachelor Degree from the
Department of Statistics of the Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics in the People’s Republic of
~ China in 1992. Mr. Liang obtained a Master Degree in
Finance from the Xiamen University in the PRC in
2005. From 1992 to 2004, Mr. Liang has held various
positions in the PRC government and the private
sector. Mr. Liang has worked as a section officer in the Division of Human
Resources and Education of Fujian Provincial Department of Finance. Mr.
Liang has also worked as a section officer in {2 B ZFERE QT (Fujian
Huaxing Trust and Investment Company Limited). Mr. Liang has worked as a
head of general office in FEFFES (Huaxing Securities Company Limited)
(“Huaxing Securities”) and has held the position of general manager in the
Research and Development Department, the Securities Trading Department
and the Investment Banking Department in Huaxing Securities where he was
responsible for the stock and futures trading and investment banking
businesses. Mr. Liang has participated in a number of initial public offering,
listing recommendation, reorganisation and acquisition and distribution work
in the PRC. Since June 2004, Mr. Liang has served as head of investment
department, secretary of the board of directors, and vice president in
Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain Management Ltd. (73174 35 i fit fiE &
&7 RAT]), the issued shares of which are listed in the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Wei, aged 61, was educated in the PRC,
Germany and Australia. He has over 20 years of
experience in establishing and operating businesses in
Asia, particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li
has previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li has
been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2007. He also
serves as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
and members of Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERDAMEERE (F)

Mr. NG Yat Cheung, JP, aged 60, appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in September 2011. Mr. Ng holds an
Associate Degree in Arts in Business Data Processing
from Chabot College in the United States. Mr. Ng
holds offices as director with a number of private
companies which are principally engaged in
technology, property development, finance and
property holding. Mr. Ng is also an independent non-
executive director of China Agri-Products Exchange
Limited and Tao Heung Holdings Limited, the shares of both companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also serves as the
members of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. LAM Hin Chi, aged 51, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in June 2014. Mr. Lam graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Professional Diploma in
Management Accountancy and a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) in Accountancy. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 26 years
of experience in finance, auditing and accounting. Mr. Lam currently is an
independent non-executive director of Merry Garden Holdings Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also
serves as the Chairman of Audit Committee and members of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Company Secretary

Ms. YUE Cheuk Ying, aged 35, appointed as the
company secretary of the Company in September
2011 and is responsible for the secretarial matters of
the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in
Public and Social Administration and a Master of
Science in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the Group
in December 2009.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are
pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the distribution of information technology (“IT”) products
and the provision of enterprise systems and IT services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the
Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and
the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 8 and pages 10 to
15 respectively of this annual report. A description of possible risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing, discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies, relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group are contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
10 to 15 of this annual report. In addition, an analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is
presented in the Financial Summary on page 140 of this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2015 represented
approximately 12.7% (2014: approximately 16.5%) of the Group’s total
revenue, and the combined total of the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 27% (2014: approximately 28.2%) of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2015
represented approximately 23.6% (2014: approximately 26.8%) of the
Group’s total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 71.3% (2014: approximately 70.7%) of the
Group’s total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (B

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 52.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2015 of HK12.4 cents per ordinary share (2014: HK11.8
cents).

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 54 and note 15 to the financial statements
respectively.

Borrowings

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
which include share premium, capital reserve and retained earnings,
amounted to approximately HK$608,482,000 (2014: approximately
HK$950,835,000).
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Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of

Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 140.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company repurchased
70,072,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The
repurchased shares were cancelled. Details of the repurchase of shares by
the Company are as follows:

No. of shares
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Highest price Lowest price Aggregate price

Month of repurchase repurchased per share (HK$) per share (HK$) paid (HK$)

sRB 5 sRE 5 S EER

BE A% BERGOEE BEEGERT) HEEGERT) (&)

July 2015 1,470,000 2.49 2.30 3,519,040
—E—RFtEA

August 2015 7,068,000 2.20 1.99 14,661,100
—hFN\A

September 2015 61,084,000 2.26 2.07 133,934,420
—RFhA

October 2015 450,000 2.18 2.11 973,400
—A%F+A

70,072,000 153,087,960

The Board believes that such repurchase of shares will lead to an EEFER A FERMER I REAQAF

enhancement of the net asset value of the Company and/or its earnings per
share. Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2015 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Ms. Chow Ying Chi

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Li
Mr. Liang Xin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung
Mr. Lam Hin Chi

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Chan Hoi Chau, Ms. Liu Li and Mr. Ng Yat Cheung will retire by rotation and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Ms. Liu Li and Mr. Ng Yat Cheung will retire as a Non-
executive Director and an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company respectively with effect from the conclusion of the forthcoming
annual general meeting and will not offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 86(2) of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a Director either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the existing Board.
Subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the Board proposed to appoint Mr. Li
Yue and Mr. Yao Jie as the Executive Directors of the Company and Mr.
Hung Wai Man and Mr. Wang Xiaolong as the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company with effect from the conclusion of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the Company considers the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific months
of notice in writing.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each Executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed by the Board but
subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the year ended 31 December 2015 or at any time during the year under
review.

Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of Directors and Company Secretary are set out on
pages 29 to 32.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or required
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

R-_E—RAF+-_F=+—HBH AQAIESE
REBITHABRAR R sk E [ 488 % =
TERBEBEOENEZLFRBEKD
(TEHERBEEMNDEXVE) 2BH - HER
D ERETFHEEREEFES RBEEMEXV
HETRSHEEME AR A KR 2w
AR (BEEEREZFFRBEKAIZSE
BN EEER B AR RER KR
E/RATLARNRARREFES KRB EEHE
BT EZEEMz#ERmRAR  KIRE
MR EMEARA BRIz #ERm AR
R

RAD R RAARR G >

Approximate
percentage of

—~

Number of issued share
Long/Short ordinary shares or capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held Company
BEEZBERA HAEAARE BT
EEnA KRB 54 HEROBE RAZBANEIL
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 67,323,200 4.63%
FEMEE e EmEAA

Long Beneficial owner 1,800,000 0.12%

S=) EnEAA Share options

7 HEs P
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 19.95%

S} corporation (Note 1)

REEE (Mtat1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.04%

e Kk = (Note 2)

(Mtit2)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 249,600 0.02%

B e EmEEA A

Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 0.10%

S} EnlEAA Share options

1) Fes P
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures (continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

(continued)

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Long/Short ordinary shares or capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held Company
BEEBERA HAEAARE BT
EEnA B%E 54 HEROBE RAZBANEIL
Ms. Chow Ying Chi Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 0.10%
L L 5=} EnlEAA Share options
1) Fe P
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 0.10%
BRI o A e EmEE A Share options
7 B8 4
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 14.04%
2IF £+ S EmEE A
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 19.95%
[S=) corporation (Note 1)
REAE (Mtat1)
Long Family interest 67,323,200 4.63%
A Kk = (Note 3)
(Ftat3)
Long Family interest 1,800,000 0.12%
5=} RiGER Share options (Note 4)
B AR e (Bt it 4)
Mr. Li Wei Long Beneficial owner 240,000 0.02%
FIREE S} EnEAA Share options
7 Hi P 7
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. 290,340,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of Mr. Li
Jialin.

3. 67,328,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of Ms.
Liu Li.

4. 1,800,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors nor
the chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2015, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or were
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting
of any other members of the Group:
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Number of Approximate
Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of Shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
ERE 2B
BRR#E B8 %®RR &% FEEERIEBROBE Bok
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 67,323,200 4.63%
FEMEE HAE EmEAA

Long Beneficial owner 1,800,000 0.12%

S=) EnlEAA Share options

1 B P
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 19.95%

e corporation (Note 1)

EEEEER (Mtat1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.04%

e Kk = (Note 2)

(Ktzt2)
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 14.04%

BIH 2+ e EmEEAA

Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 19.95%

HE corporation (Note 1)

REAE S (Mtit1)
Long Family interest 67,323,200 4.63%

e EN F (Note 3)

(Kta£3)
Long Family interest 1,800,000 0.12%

IS~y Kk Em Share options (Note 4)

B R (ff 7t 4)
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ TERREEMAETNKR
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying 4 ﬁ B0 R B 2
Shares and Debentures (continueq) mRIRE
Number of Approximate
Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of Shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
EREZBQ
BRREEEHE ¥ RE g7 RFELZBERINBEROHE B
L & L Limited Long Beneficial owner 290,340,000 19.95%
IS~ EnAE A (Note 5)
(Mtits)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 252,211,088 17.33%
HE EnEAA (Note 6)
(htite)
RINTT G 22 3B e AR ) Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.33%
BRRAA S} corporation (Note 7)
REAE (Mit7)
FINTIREBREZERBR  Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.33%
NG 5=} corporation (Note 8)
FEEEE (Kt &E8)
Mr. Zhou Guohui Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.33%
JE B8 o A& S} corporation (Note 8)
REEE R (Ktzt8)
FRE s S DR T Long Security interest in 252,211,998 17.33%
S shares (Note 9)
% 19 4 19 4 o (Mt7t9)
People’s Bank of China Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.33%
B ARRTT 5=} corporation (Note 9)
FEEE (Bt &9)
Fidelity Long Investment manager 163,755,600 11.25%
A wE KR
Ntasian Discovery Master Fund ~ Long Beneficial owner 120,000,000 8.25%
e EmEEA
Mutual Funds Elite Long Custodian corporation 76,174,400 5.23%
A FEE LA
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continueq)

Notes:

1.

290,340,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of Mr. Li
Jialin.

67,328,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of Ms.
Liu Li.
1,800,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of

Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and
his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by J&3JI[fta
DRHEEERMHBERAA.

36.72% of the shares of &I 1A B EHE KD BRA R are held by FIYIITH
(RIS BT AR AR

100% of the shares of RIITTIETEEIREIFREBR AT are held by Mr. Zhou
Guohui.

The entire issued share capital of A B3t i A ER1T is held by People’s Bank of
China.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, so far is known to the
Directors, no person had an interest and/or a short position in the shares

and/or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or was
directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting

of any other members of the Group, or any options in respect of such capital.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Share Options

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April 2002 (the “Old
Scheme”) has expired. The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to the Group. Further

details of the Scheme are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

During the year under review, no share options haven been granted under the
New Scheme. During the year under review, no share options have been
lapsed or cancelled under the Old Scheme. Details of the share options

B

KRRt 8
“ET-FMATEERNNBR

ZN/NSI DS
BB (EFIDEEER - ARAR T —
TERNAZ T =B RAERES S (T
) BERAERSEERAKELZE

BRI LR B) A0 52 28

ZATEl 2 E—FFEREH
R TEHRRMFE14R

EOBEFEAN BEREHAIREEAE
- EOEFEAR  BEEABEREREE
AR EEE BRI T2 BREZE S F

movement under the Old Scheme are as follows: BT -
As at Exercised As at Exercise

Name or category of Date of 1 January during the 31 December price per
participant offer 2015 year 2015 share (HK$) Exercise period

R=%—-1 R-ZZE—1F BRITEE
SEEMZNER EFBH F—HB—H HRITE +=A=+-—H (% 7) T
Directors
=
Mr. Li Jialin 23/03/2011 1,800,000 — 1,800,000 2.028 23/03/2013-22/03/2021
FEMEE
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William 23/03/2011 1,440,000 — 1,440,000 2.028 23/03/2013-22/03/2021
FEMTRAE
Ms. Chow Ying Chi 17/02/2011 1,440,000 - 1,440,000 2.227 17/02/2013-16/02/2021
HELEL+
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau 23/03/2011 1,440,000 - 1,440,000 2.028 23/03/2013-22/03/2021
Bk M o A
Mr. Li Wei 23/03/2011 240,000 — 240,000 2.028 23/03/2013-22/03/2021
FEEE
Sub-total /N5t 6,360,000 — 6,360,000
Employees 17/02/2011 10,560,000 (240,000) 10,320,000 2.227 17/02/2013-16/02/2021
B8
Total #2851 16,920,000 (240,000) 16,680,000
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any
of the companies comprising the Group, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year under review.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing business.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors or
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets of the Company against all losses and liabilities which they may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty. The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against the Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (B

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions (also related party transactions) have been disclosed
in note 30 to the financial statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis and
the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as the
shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.

The above connected transactions constituted exempted connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as each of the percentage ratios is less

than 0.1% as defined under the Listing Rules when the agreements were
entered into.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set out
in note 27 to the financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the

knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE(E)

Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2015 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee which was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BUED 3R

N

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VST
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VST Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 50 to 139, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and of the
Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2016

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e R &

As at 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HF+-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—MmF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
M 3E FHERT FET
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE NEE 5 287,098 117,612
Goodwiill EES 6 310,592 324,001
Interest in associates REE R A= 8 277,805 322,780
Interest in a joint venture REELEMNER 9 55,211 67,385
Deferred expenses IEIE R 2 10 3,884 5,876
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 17 62,074 54,033
996,664 891,687
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b e Uk 58 10 8,564,014 7,657,514
Inventories PN 11 3,973,973 3,085,112
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBESEDY 12 3,233,727 1,495,111
15,771,714 12,237,737
Total assets MmEE 16,768,378 13,129,424
EQUITY R
Share capital [N 13 145,536 152,519
Reserves & 3,673,571 3,802,206
3,819,107 3,954,725
Non-controlling interests JEERER - 38,233
Total equity HRER 3,819,107 3,992,958
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e B MR & (F)

As at 31 December 2015 A —E—HF+-A=+—H

2015 2014
ey Y —E—pE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 2 FERT FAETT
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities ERBEARE
Deferred income R IE YA 16 4,994 7,502
Borrowings R} 18 985,803 376
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 17 27,663 36,423
1,018,460 44,301
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H A E R RIE 16 7,276,244 5,496,114
Borrowings EBSY 18 4,635,211 3,556,900
Taxation payable JE S F 18 19,356 39,151
11,930,811 9,092,165
Total liabilities waeE 12,949,271 9,136,466
Total equity and liabilities ERLEEHRE 16,768,378 13,129,424
Net current assets RBEEFE 3,840,903 3,145,572
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERARBERE 4,837,567 4,037,259
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March BEHE @R —_Z—XF-_A -+ ZHHLERE
2016. T8 o
Li Jialin Chow Ying Chi
ZEMK MWEE
Director Director
EF EF

The notes on pages 57 to 139 are an integral part of these financial S57=1398 v M B KM B kK 2 — &

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2015 E — T —AF+ A=+ —HIEFE

2015 2014
—g-5% | —T-n4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 2 FERT FAT
Revenue U %5 19 45,575,640 41,892,709
Cost of sales Fi=R=—07' %N (43,878,639) (40,220,035)
Gross profit ESl| 1,697,001 1,672,674
Other (losses)/gains, net H i (EE), WA FHE 20 (2,689) 15,339
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHA X (648,244) (531,278)
Administrative expenses THEX (368,999) (312,838)
Operating profit R 21 677,069 843,897
Finance costs MEER 22 (139,738) (104,392
537,331 739,505
Share of associates’ profits kB R B E A 34,686 34,939
Share of a joint venture’s loss NiEEELESE (10,019) (5,415)
Profit before taxation R T B i 7 561,998 769,029
Taxation F 18 23 (111,617) (143,361)
Profit for the year F A 5 A 450,381 625,668
Attributable to: BT ALE:
Equity shareholders of the Company AArlEZEAA 450,381 607,374
Non-controlling interests IE 5 R = - 18,294
450,381 625,668
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) A% & F (TR A L)
— Basic —EK 26 29.94 cents fill | 40.59 cents fili
— Diluted —#%E 29.89 cents fill | 40.58 cents 1Ll
Dividends attributable to equity shareholders ERESRFEARE
Final dividend proposed Ik R B AR B 25 180,000 180,000

The notes on pages 57 to 139 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z ==

Hit 2 HEIE

T &

—RE+TZA=+—BLFE

2015 2014

—E-FEF —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Profit for the year F R %A 450,381 625,668
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax: FRE M2 E U A » B -

Exchange differences fE X =% (268,357) (78,613)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEHEBALRE 182,024 547,055
Attributable to: LT ALRE:

Equity shareholders of the Company ARAEEFAEA 182,024 530,581

Non-controlling interests Elig o - 16,474
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEERAERE 182,024 547,055

The notes on pages 57 to 139 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

érl'l

e R

% B) 1 =

For the year ended 31 December 2015 E — T —AF+ A=+ —HIEFE

Equity
attributable to
Capital the Company’s Non-
Share Share redemption  Capital  General  Translation Other  Retained equity  controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve reserve  reserve  eamings  shareholders interests equity
i RARRER FER
RE ROEE BERE EARE -REE  EXRE HoHE RSBEI BAELER B AER
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FEr  TExn T  FEr  FEx TEr  Thrn  TiEx FET FEr  FEn
Note () Note i)~ Note (i)  Note (iv) Note(r)  Note (vi)
g Wzt Wi W Wz R
Balance as at 1 January 2014 R-E-WE
—A-Bzi&% 149,404 756,318 - 22,178 49,285 185,307 (176,494) 2,402,500 3,388,498 231902 3,620,400
Proft for the year EREF - - - - - - — 607374 807374 18204 625668
Other comprehensive income HipzmEBA - - - - - (76,799) - - (76,799 (18200 (78,613
Total comprehensive income FREERNEE
for the year - - - - - (76,793) - 607,374 530,581 16,474 547,055
Dividends paid to non-controling A3 R 2 BB
interests - - - - - - - - - (5,428) (5,428)
Transfer of reserves BREE - - - - 10578 - - (10,578) - - -
Dividend paid BR%E - - - - - - — (11952 (119,504) 1952
Acquisition of additional interestin [ 3£ 2 Ik #E %5
asubsidiary from non-controling R B A 7
interest BobER - - - - - - 8498 - 84923 (224243  (139,320)
Share options exercised by ERRERTEBRE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - (7,581) - (7,581) 19,528 11,947
Issue of new shares BOHRA 3200 75914 - - - - - - 79,114 - 79,114
Share options exercised BRI ERE 24 759 - (248) - - - - 535 - 535
Share options forfeited or lapsed B R 3 R BB M 1 - - - @ - - - 2,179 - - -
Shares repurchased BEER®R
— Par value -HE (109) - - - - - - - (109) - (109)
— Premium paid -BR%E - - - - - - - 1 {1.712) -4
— Transfer between reserves — BRI - - 109 - - - - (109) - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2014 R =Z—4F
+-A=t-Hz#% 152519 832,991 109 19,151 59,863 108,514 (99,152) 2,880,730 3,954,725 38233 3,992,958
Representing: RE:
Share capital & 152,619
Reserves G 3,622,206
Proposed dividend BRRE 180,000
3,954,725
Balance as at 1 January 2015 R-E-HE
—A-Bzi&s 152,519 832,991 109 19,151 59,863 108,514 (99,152) 2,880,730 3,954,725 38,233 3,992,958
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 450,381 450,381 - 450,381
Other comprehensive income Ht2EKA - - - - - (268,357) - - (268,357) (268,357)
Total comprehensive income FREERNEE
for the year - - - - - (268,357) — 450,381 182,024 - 182,024
Dividend paid BR%E - - - - - - - ({180,001) (180,001) —  (180,001)
Acquisition of additional interestin [ 3 2 IR 18 25
asubsidiary from non-controling R E A 7
interest BobER - - - - - - 14913 - 14913 (38233  (23,320)
Share options exercised BEMEERE 24 791 - (281) - - - - 534 - 534
Shares repurchased BEERH
— Par value -BE (7,007) - - - - - - - (7,007) - (7,007)
— Premium pid -B%E - - - - - - - (146,081) (146,081) — (146,081)
— Tranfer between reserves 1 EE - - 7,007 - - - - (7,007) - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2015 R =F—R&
+ZE=ft-HzE#| 14553 833782 7,116 18870 59,863 (159,843)  (84,239) 2,998,022 3,819,107 - 3,819,107
Representing: RE:
Share capital % 145,536
Reserves & 3,493,571
Proposed dividend BRRE 180,000
3,819,107

The notes on pages 57 to 139 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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(iii)

(v)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

BERERDEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #iZE —F—AF + - A=+—HILFE

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference between
the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and that of
the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the Group reorganisation in April
2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April 2002; and (c) the premium arising from
the new issue of shares, net of share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium may also be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled shares
of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to Companies Law
(revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of the Company and the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2.16(d).

According to the current the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”),
the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10% of their profits
after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the statutory surplus reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. For the purpose of calculating the
amount to be transferred to the reserve, the profit after taxation is the amount
determined under PRC accounting standards. The amount of transfer to this
reserve has to be made before profit distribution to shareholders. In accordance
with the relevant regulations, this reserve may be used to make up any losses
incurred or to increase the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between the consideration paid and the
relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of subsidiaries for the
transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (Note 2.2(a)).
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n\ZFAIE 37 /JILE*&%‘:Z

For the year ended 31 December 2015 E — T —AF+ A=+ —HIEFE

2015 2014
— —E-mE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 THET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities K% f% Z Bene
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations AR (TR S F5E 28 669,977 (20,810)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid = 1‘1‘? 7B 15 5 (39,371) (42,437)
Overseas tax paid EATEIN IR (108,379) (92,669)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating EIEEAE(FTA)
activities Eﬁ &5 522,227 (155,916)
Cash flows from investing activities HEGHZRERE
Interest received 2R 14,120 16,618
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE WELK (77,220) (23,689)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE BEX
and equipment E& BET1E A 456 369
Investment in a joint venture REETENKRE - (61,175)
Dividends received from associates H&ZHSL B QAR E 32,689 8,727
Net cash used in investing activities WEFRSBEEFE (29,955) (49,150)
Cash flows from financing activities REGH2RERE
Payment for the repurchase of shares 8 @ B 10 - 3% (153,088) (1,821)
Proceeds from exercise of share options ITEEARERTS ?ﬁ’\ 534 535
Changes in non-controlling interests arising REENRWE R
from an increase in the Group’s % % 12 0 B EE E El’\]
shareholding in subsidiaries JE 1S A o5 (23,320) (127,373)
Issue of shares BT — 79,114
New bank borrowings BTG 11,851,482 11,843,480
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (9,818,914) (10,942,781)
Payment to non-controlling interests TS FEfE AR A 2 - (5,428)
Interest paid 2R A (139,738) (104,392)
Dividend paid BT B (180,001) (119,524)
Net cash generated from financing activities BEEEREIHRES FHE 1,536,955 621,810
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Be& MBS EWIEM
FER 2,029,227 416,744
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—RAZzRE &
iﬁ%%{“% 1,495,111 1,168,535
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXxgH (290,611) (90,168)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+—_A=+—BzZ2B& &
WEEEBEY 12 3,233,727 1,495,111

The notes on pages 57 to 139 are an integral part of these financial
statements. )
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #iZE —F—AF + - A=+—HILFE

General Information

VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the distribution of information
technology (“IT”) products and the provision of enterprise systems and
IT services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33rd Floor, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March
2016.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the current and prior years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests
in associates and a joint venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y RE ()

4
For the year ended 31 December 2015 E — T —AF+ A=+ —HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETBEME

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE )

58 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except that other financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are stated at their fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R ()

U
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #iZE —F—AF + - A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETBEME

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continueq) 21 mBEEE (&)

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

o Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined
benefit plans: Employee contributions

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period. The
impact of the adoption of the amended HKFRSs is discussed
below:

Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined benefit
plans: Employee contributions

The amendments introduce a relief to reduce the complexity of
accounting for certain contributions from employees or third
parties under defined benefit plans. When the contributions are
eligible for the practical expedient provided by the amendments,
a company is allowed to recognise the contributions as a
reduction of the service cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered, instead of including them in calculating the
defined benefit obligation. The amendments do not have an
impact on these financial statements as the Group does not
operate any defined benefit plans.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y RE ()

4
For the year ended 31 December 2015 E — T —AF+ A=+ —HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1

2.2

60 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Basis of preparation (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-
2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain amendments
to nine standards with consequential amendments to other
standards. Among them, HKAS 24, Related party disclosures
has been amended to expand the definition of a “related party”
to include a management entity that provides key management
personnel services to the reporting entity, and to require the
disclosure of the amounts incurred for obtaining the key
management personnel services provided by the management
entity. These amendments do not have an impact on the Group’s
related party disclosures as the Group does not obtain key
management personnel services from management entities.

Consolidation

(@)  Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #iZE —F—AF + - A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 E — T —AF+ A=+ —HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continueq)

()

62 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with note 2.8 depending on the nature of the
liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.8) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture (see note 2.2(b)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #iZE —F—AF + - A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2.7), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2.7). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continueq)

(b)

64 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in
a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 2.8).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #iZE —F—AF + - A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

()

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets are included in equity.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

©)

66 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate
at the reporting date;

(i) income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to equity. When a foreign operation
is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity
are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEHBEME

(continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment 24 ME - -HERZME

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have
been adopted are summarised as follows:

Leasehold improvements

HEBFEE

Buildings held for own use carried at cost
BREAINEZFHIFERET

Furniture and fixtures

FAREKE

Office equipment

WAER

Computers

Motor vehicles

M

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

68 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Property, plant and equipment (continueq)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss on
the date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and are available for
their intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into
use, the costs are transferred to items of property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated in note 2.4 above.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in

the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #iZE —F—AF + - A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.6

2.7

Goodwill (continuea)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2.7).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, a joint venture and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not available for
use are not subject to amortisation, and are tested at least
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash
generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business
combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated
to those cash generating units or groups of cash generating units
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose.

2. TESTHERE»

2.6

2.7

BAZKRERAF

BE )

PR AR Z AT REEEBYIR -
¥BeMELENEmESIEEER
ARAHNRRANEFZHENS
ReEFBEUNBeELEMA
Al WEFEREBENR (R
2.7)°

FALHEXRSELSEUR  BA

BEZEFNEESBBDNRGE D

ERWREEERHARLSD -
A

E@Eﬁ%@ﬁ M ==
—EAELENR
B 2 R
BEE R LA FE B ARAHE
RrEEDREE WELBFE
BEAR - LEENHBRETER
HESEEND 2 EHHIERE
BB EFE LB o BEBETD
REEFREEBLETKE ¢
ZeBEREREANER - Al iE ¢
BEEAEZATERE SR KN
TREBEME 2R EE LT EE
FREER A RKRSREBEA
NRBERTSHYEERHER
B R E R B 6 5T Mk 6 B AT RE 3R
EAREHIRE-

A &
PE

I T3

\

BBEANSANS  BEESKAR/RAA
FEECRATEERBBINEM
BEXEEANMELENEESR
ANRNEEAN(REELE
D) - XBEHBESZEHE 3
HEARME  PEEBHHNE
TRBZEHAHTRENERSE
EEXEMSREEFLEMAR -

“T-hAFFHR 69



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y RE ()

4
For the year ended 31 December 2015 E — T —AF+ A=+ —HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

70 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, 27 RMIBAR  -BEQINTAR
associates, a joint venture and non-financial assets —EEELENRERFE
(continued) B & F BB B ()

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an WEESHEcELEBEMNWET
asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated ERBEGFTRE S Al
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit RBEEE - BEBEREZEREA
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash BR -BREESELEENERNBE
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount EERARER  EREDEZEZE

of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units)
on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34 “Interim financial reporting” in
respect of the first six months of the financial period. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in the subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #iZE —F—AF + - A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments

()

Financial assets

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for assets with maturities greater than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Investments in unlisted equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in unlisted equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in unlisted equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price. Cost Includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (continued)

(@

72 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial assets (continued)

Investments in unlisted equity securities (continued)
Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are
subsequently recognised in the statement of financial
position at cost less impairment losses. Dividend income
from equity securities is recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2.20.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is considered to be impaired if
objective evidence indicates that one or more events have
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (continued)

()

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For unlisted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity

securities carried at cost are not reversed.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge
its foreign currency risk exposures. Embedded derivatives
are separated from the host contract and accounted for
separately if the economic characteristics and risks of the
host contract and the embedded derivates are not closely
related, a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative, and the combined instrument is not measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value; attributable transaction costs are recognised in
profit or loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, derivative financial instruments are measured
at fair value. When a derivative financial instrument is held
for trading, and is not designated in a qualifying hedge-
relationship, all changes in its fair value are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETBEME

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (continued) 28 R T B #)

(c)  Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
Group entity are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

2.9 Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost formula. The
cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHHEME

(continued)

2.10 Trade and other receivables 210 & H fth FE I SR8
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value B REMEWREBEINSERF
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the BEER & J//(,J‘f%*w—.—/ﬂﬂéﬁﬁ
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of AR AS 30 B SR BR R (E B R M

doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts. Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
are recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
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original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of BR-EBEANEAMBRE - &
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or AR ESETI B EAR

financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments I 3 49 3K #6 ] A SR AR 1 FE IR
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The HERENDR - WWBR 2T EB

amount of impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s EXCARESESCEAEERA
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash BEEGHEFREAAESRERERERAR
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate where the effect of KON BB ERE -
discounting is material.

Impairment losses for trade receivables within trade and other B 5 K& H b JE W K IE R A g |l

receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote are recorded using an allowance account. Where the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
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loss. MeBINEREANER -

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents 2NBERIBEEEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, RekBEcSEBEVRERTRE
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and GRS RBTREMSHEED
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible BAFER URANERE®RLSE

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETBEME

76 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)
2.12 Share capital 2.12 IR A
Ordinary shares TiER

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Repurchase of shares

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly
attributable costs is recognised as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are presented as a deduction from total
equity.

2.13 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and

213
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subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective BEER  HENERMEXiREH
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be BAGTE - BRIFGIREFE T K A
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. AR B

2.14 Interest-bearing borrowings 2145t EEE

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and the redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

2.15 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHHEME

(continued)

2.15Income tax (continueq) 215 FT5 % (&)

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
assets are realised or the deferred tax liabilities are settled.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of
a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each end of the reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(@)

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution retirement plans,
the assets of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The retirement plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
Group companies. For employees in the PRC, the Group
participates in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the relevant local governments in the PRC.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the statement of financial
position date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

V)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained earnings).
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETBEME

(continued)

2.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities QITBRERIAERE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.18 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
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the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(@)  Operating leases @ ®KEHE=E

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and A E 2 KD R R & E #H
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are BEHEAREZ a"ﬂ EhN%E
classified as operating leases. Payments made under AREHE - RELEHE
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the Sz RE 0B A H A AR
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis J/EMAEER)REHRRN

over the period of the lease. Lease incentives received are BERELAEBEEEATR- - W
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the BrHEEEREREARE
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals .:,UZ%/? Hedmemen —i
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in cHAMEERELENEE
which they are incurred. ,Hﬁ M EB=EAMNE -
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEHBEME

(continued)

2.18 Leases (continued) 218 & ()

()  Finance leases
The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are

b ®EMHEHE
AEEEEETFYVE BE
BB NEEELEBKD
SERBELDBROYE  BE

classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised HBHEDDEARME
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value HE BEHERHEHERE
of the leased property and the present value of the KZEEMEATERKER
minimum lease payments. HENTBENREERER
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and FHERBREELRRE
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the XEESE - LWEREEZ

finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings. The interest element of the lease payments is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
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leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of XX BEERSEREENE
the asset and the lease term. Impairment losses are RERREBRHREE NG
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as RITE - BEEE TR EH
set out in note 2.7. F2TFIH AR AR -
2.19 Segment reporting 219 7 I &
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item KEDHBERUBRRAZHRD
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the EoHEEENEEHREMHT

financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not

AEESZRITHREEAR  UEA
SEMNZEEBLZ AR ET
BRI ETERBNY B E R
HEk Rl e

BRIEDHMABRUNKEERE R
EEmMBRBEEE £EIFE
g EFRPRMSER - BEOHE
mAREBRBEOTEREETRE
MEETEAEMN RIS EERE
EOMIERYBHREENME

Th1l%J3E§7ﬁE’J%&%“*ﬁ

individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of f-r & Mt KEEH1F % - BIR] & 425t
these criteria. H o
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

()

(i)

(i

Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when products have been
delivered to the customers which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the products and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Service fees
Fees from service maintenance contracts are recognised
over the period of the contract.

Project revenue

Revenue on projects is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss based on the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the percentage of
contract costs incurred to date to estimated total contract
costs for the contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEHBEME

(continued)
2.22 Related parties 2N BEEANT
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is @ HTEUTERT EALTHE
related to the Group if that person: MBRE ER BEHAEEREH
@
) has control or joint control over the Group; () P ek R A
E

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or i) HAEBEEATE

7753k

@iy  is a member of the key management personnel of iy AAEEHASE YN
the Group or the Group’s parent. AMETEERABLZ

()  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following o) TEUATEMRMBRAT ZEE
conditions applies: HAREEABE

) The entity and the Group are members of the same ) ZHEBRASEHER
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary —SBHKXERFH
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). NaE - WBRAR KM

AMBRARSEERH
) o

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the i) ZERBAS EEMH
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a EARHEE D EE
member of a Group of which the other entity is a BEEEKE AR A
member). ERalgeaErE M

Zr—ERALEEN
KE AT -

@iy  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MEERBHBR-—F=
party. FTHEERE-

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy EEBERBRF=7TEEHN
other entity is an associate of the third entity. EEDLHE ME—EE

Al AZE=H BB
/NI

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the vV) ZRERBRUAREETHR
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity AEBEBENEEY
related to the Group. 1 B 2 7| 2k M &% &Y B B

& & FIEHEl o

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a V) ZEBIZ@EFAMEN
person identified in (a). ATEwl gL RES -

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (i) 7E(a)() 18 # BT & B &9 A
over the entity or is a member of the key THZERAEEATE
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent N HBZEB(HZ
of the entity). EEMNERR)MNEE

EBABZ— -

(viiij  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZEEHIEMBEEZ
part, provides key management personnel services ARKE AR ALRE
to the Group or the Group’s parent. SAEEMHE D FRE

HHREEABRE -
Close members of the family of a person are those family REATHEBRRERKE BTEEA
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced EERZEEIFEZEZAL
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. SFBZATHENRKEKE -
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

84 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”), the United States Dollar (“US$”), the Singapore
Dollar (“S$”), Thai Baht (“THB”) and Indonesian Rupiah (“‘RP”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to reduce foreign exchange risk. As at 31
December 2015, the Group had outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts with a net notional amount of
approximately HK$387,509,000 (2014: approximately
HK$499,329,000).

A 5% strengthening of the following currencies other than
the functional currencies of the Group’s entities against the
HK$ at 31 December 2015 would have increased/
(decreased) the post-tax profit in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss of the Group by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The
analysis has been performed on the same basis as for the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R ()

—RE+TZA=+—BLFE

BHERARBEERAFE

(%)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBREREE®
Foreign exchange risk (continued) (@ YN E B ()
Group
rE
2015 2014
—E—REF — O F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FiET
RMB AR #& 37,302 44,077
US$ ETT (75,679) (58,809)
S$ T 8,070 13,522
THB B 17,678 8,975
RP N 7,406 11,355
A 5% weakening of the above currencies against the HK$ Lt B H BT E5% (R
would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above R BEEMEESEIFTTE) S
currencies, on the basis that all other variables remain HEnE¥ELAERBMAR
constant. B2 o
Interest rate risk b A =EE B
The Group’s income and operating cash flows are AEBHNKRARKEER SR
substantially independent of changes in market interest ERBIZTHENEEEHF
rates and the Group has no significant interest-bearing Z2 mMErBEekREEFEY
assets except for the cash and cash equivalents, details of SN REEBEWESE R EE
which have been disclosed in note 12. The Group’s E dBEREERMFEI2 K
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable SEMNMNEEHRERREE X
to its bank borrowings, details of which have been BEEBTEE FBEER
disclosed in note 18. Borrowings carried at floating rates ME18- ZEEBEFEAEE
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. HHIESREFNERE
At 31 December 2015, if the interest rates on bank RZE—RAF+ZRA=+—
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all B MRTEERNE LA/
other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit T #1008 X 2 - i T B E
for the year would have been HK$47,284,000 (2014: thEEEFTTE A AEE
HK$29,698,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/ F AR B E RN GRS
lower interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings. 47,284,000 (= Z —
129,698,000/ T )
HmRZE fEfﬂﬁEE’Jﬂ 7
SR e
BAEZERERLAE —Z—AHFF#H 85
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

©)

86 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The exposures to these credit risks are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis by established credit
policies and procedures.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited in various
financial institutions, which management believes are of
high quality. Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade receivables falls within the recorded
allowances.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping credit
lines available.
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. BIBEKRERERAFE

(continued) (%)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HEEEEE®
(d  Liquidity risk (continued) d mEVERRRE)
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s EEELRERReRERE
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn facilities and cash and ERAXEERDEHE (R
cash equivalents, on the basis of expected cash flows. The BARIBHEARE SRR
table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into CEEY MIFEREN TX
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period DERBERABHES LS H
at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. BR%THEITEALBH
EIEAE R M A EE B A E -
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and After
Total 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
L —FR —-FEWME WEELF BBEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
Group N3 |
At 31 December 2015 RZB-EF+ZA=+-H
Bank borrowings RITEE 5,749,187 4,682,387 67,941 981,019 17,840
Adjustments to cash flow based 1R & 77 B3k & FUEF| 4
on lender’s right to demand BeRERTAR
repayment - 56,203 (9,591) (28,772) (17,840)
5,749,187 4,738,590 58,350 952,247 -
Finance lease liabilities BEREAR 870 345 254 271 -
Trade and other payables BHREAMERFE 7,276,244 - - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZB-BE+ZA=+-H
Bank borrowings RIS 3614043 3503034 3613 10,840 6,556
Adjustments to cash flow based 1R 5 & 77 B KiE FiE A 4
on lender’s right to demand BemEFEHAR
repayment - 21,009 (3,613 (10,840) (6,556)
3,614,043 3,614,043 - - -
Finance lease liabilties BEMERE 734 282 452 - -

Trade and other payables B REMENTE 5,496,114 - - - -
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3.

(continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and
non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Equity is

BHERARBEERERAFE

(%)

3.2

EXRERET

AEEEREAZBNRERAN
SEBRNFELE URKRERR
WO KA E M S E R E RS
M MEFREEARRBARE
BARMRA o

%Eﬁ‘i.ﬂ”ﬁ$ g NEBE®

HERNTEREROREEHE [
Hﬁ%%%ﬁ$~?§ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%’ﬁiﬁi%i§
AR

AEBBREG TR AL EER
BAR - R RIREBFERAEE
@i E - EBFRRAER(RE
RAEMBRRNRATORE &I
RBEE) AR KRS EEY

calculated as shown in the consolidated statement of financial o ERBRERAMER AR R
position. =)
The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31 TEROIMAEER_ZT—HF+
December 2015: “A=+—H88ME $ T%
2015 2014
—E-RE — P4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Total borrowings (Note 18) BE®E(HT18) 5,621,014 3,557,276
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12) BWoIRERBEEEY
(BtaE12) (3,233,727) (1,495,111)
Net debt B F5 2,387,287 2,062,165
Total equity HBRE 3,819,107 3,992,958
Net debt/equity ratio EIGEE R 0.63 0.52
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. BIBEKRERERAFE

(continued) (%)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEMET
() Financial instruments measured at fair value ) URArFEFEzE2/8I

The following table presents the carrying value of the TREJIIAEERZEEME

Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value at the EUARFEFEZESHMI

statement of financial position date on a recurring basis ERUBRAREXBHZER

across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in B+ I LAE BB 7% 3R & % R

HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. The level FIHIEHMTA: HEIMA

into which a fair value measurement is classified is EZRNFEREREN=EER

determined with reference to the observability and YRe ATFEFEMHEZ

significance of the inputs used in the valuation techniques TA T2 E AT hE R AR

as follows: A ABBzABEREER
EZEREMET:

. Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only . FE-EREE: EFEHA
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active F—[E fm A& (]
markets for identical assets and liabilites at the HREERBERTE
measurement date HEAIER MG 2 R

ABRRE)GFEZRATFE
&

. Level 2 valuations: Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable . F_EBAEE-FE
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using B ABBEITHFS
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs E—BRzAERGA
are inputs for which market data is not available HE) AT ARFHAERX

O BRE AHE T
B AHBEAED
HGEBEAHERZ#EA
g

. Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using . FoEAGE:-FRE
significant unobservable inputs AR A BB ET

BZAFME

BHERERAT —ZT—AFFHR 89



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y RE ()

4
For the year ended 31 December 2015 E — T —AF+ A=+ —HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. BIBEKRERERAFE

(continued) (%)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEMGF @)
()  Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) ) UNAFEIF=EZE&/IT
H®)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—EBHR FE-EBHR F=ER a5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
TET TR TR TR

At 31 December 2015 R-ZEBE—HF
+=—A=+-—H

Assets =43
Derivative assets MEEE — 1,603 - 1,603
Liabilities =R
Forward foreign exchange RHINES K

contracts - 7,780 — 7,780
At 31 December 2014 R-ZT—WE

+t=ZA=+-—8H

Assets EE
Derivative assets PTHEEE — 1,321 - 1,321
Liabilities afE
Forward foreign exchange REIMNE S K

contracts — 2,710 — 2,710
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, REE-_ZT—HAFR_F—
there were no transfers between the levels of fair value NE+=—A=+—RHIEFE
hierarchy. A RFEE S B EE

ITREMRER -

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts in F_EMRBINESEDHR
Level 2 is determined by discounting the contractual FEDNZRENEAESR
forward price and deducting the current spot rate. The THEERBEERET -
discount rate used is derived from the relevant government FrfE AR BEIR R & B R
yield curve as at the end of the reporting period plus an MEBEBRBRFREERHE 5
adequate constant credit spread. MEMHEEFEEEZSH -
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value
The fair values of trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables and borrowings
are assumed to approximate their carrying amounts.

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@)

Estimated write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-downs
of inventories are recorded to the extent where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised.

The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and write-downs of inventories in the period in which
such estimate are changed.

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. Provisions are applied to trade receivables to the
extent where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible.

The identification of impairment of trade receivables requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and impairment loss in the
period in which such estimates are changed.

3.
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EERER AT RHE
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AEBERBFEAERM ZFAH
WORfF &= AT #IRFE - W HIRAE
TREHBAUREAREER 2 =M
HEREY AEBREASREFE
OB A BR

a8k ) Hi0RR 78 e PR K B K fh 5T - W TR
HEMNRRAM  BHEZRHS
FEZMGTEREPHHZEFE
FREE KT E MU -

(b) %ﬁ%%@%ﬂﬁﬁ@%

AEBERBHEHERWFAEZA
WEERIEH 27 E - BLE 5 EWR
REREFLEE HHBRBTE
&SR REEERRD 2 EHHIT
NEH AGREARRE S ER
FORVEHL RS -

B & 5 e UK B R BB E A A
B R fhate WEBEBHBENRRE R
i ARERESTEZMGERE
BHMECE S RKRFEREER
B

BHERERAT —Z—HFF®R 91



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y RE ()

4
For the year ended 31 December 2015 E — T —AF+ A=+ —HIEFE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(continued)

(©)

92 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (see note 6).

In assessing the value-in-use of the goodwill, management
considers changes in economic conditions and makes
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other
factors. Estimates of future cash flows are highly subjective and
judgements are based on the Group’s experience and knowledge
of operations. These estimates can be significantly impacted by
many factors including changes in business and economic
conditions, operating costs, inflation and competition.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.
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5. Property, Plant and Equipment 5. ¥ -BERRZRE

Buildings held
Leasehold for own use Furniture Office Motor  Assets under
improvements  carried at cost and fixtures  equipment Computers  vehicles  construction Total
HE ZEKSIEH KA
NEEE BEERET REE POERE £ RE HREE @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TERT TET TAE=x
As at 1 January 2014 R-Z-mE—-A—H
Cost AE 22,310 70,431 14,061 11,684 42,019 8,707 233 169,345
Accumulated depreciation ZiME (13,503) (7,041) 4,712 (8,010) (15,751) (4,581) - (53,598)
Net book amount REFE 8,807 63,390 9,349 3,574 26,268 4,126 233 115,747
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZE-T—N&F
TZAZ+T-BIFE
Opening net book amount FONERFE 8,807 63,390 9,349 3,574 26,268 4126 233 115,747
Additions nE 7,540 - 2,934 1,053 6,481 1,311 4,370 23,689
Transfer B 239 - 2,595 - 12 - (2,846) -
Disposals HeE (160) - (132) (84) (251) - - 627)
De-registration of a subsidiary RE-—BHELARZ
i - - - (57) - - - (67)
Depreciation wE (3,932) (1,442) (2,865) (1,469) (8,599) (1,206) - (19513
Exchange difference EXER (382) (46) (360) 68) (624) 1) (66) (1,627)
Closing net book amount FREDFE 12,112 61,902 11,621 2,949 23,287 4,150 1,691 117,612
As at 31 December 2014 and RZZT-—DmF
1 January 2015 +-A=+-8EF
—E-h%¥-A-H
Cost A 27,839 70,226 18,206 10,846 40,800 8,886 1,691 178,494
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (15,727) (8,324) (6,685) (7,897) (17,513) (4,736) - (60,882
Net book amount FRE@DFE 12,112 61,902 11,621 2,949 23,287 4,150 1,691 117,612
Year ended 31 December 2015 HZE-T—HF
+tZA=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FREFE 12,112 61,902 11,621 2,949 23,287 4,150 1,691 117,612
Additions NE 4,645 179,449 269 1,659 11,6562 1,918 2,228 201,720
Transfer B - - 2,420 186 - - (2,606) -
Disposals k= - - (276) (5) (231) - (350) (862)
Depreciation FE (4,576) (4,635) (2,850) (1,427) (7,935) (946) - (22369)
Exchange difference ERESE (650) (132) (953) (194) (6,702) (257) (115) (9,003)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 11,531 236,584 10,131 3,068 20,071 4,865 848 287,098
As at 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F
+=ZA=+-8
Cost KAE 30,657 249,280 16,027 11,466 37,868 9,991 848 356,137
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (19,126) (12,696) (5,896) (8,398) (17,797) (5,126) — (69,039
Net book amount BREFE 11,631 236,584 10,131 3,068 20,071 4,865 848 287,098

The net book value of property, plant and equipment under finance
leases as at 31 December 2015 was HK$1,258,000 (2014:

HK$1,009,000).

The acquisition of buildings held for own use carried at cost was mainly
financed by unsecured bank borrowings and a secured mortgage loan
of HK$77,500,000 and HK$47,000,000 respectively.

MEAMEBETZOR  BEERBE R
E-AF+T-A=Z+-HHNEKREFESR
1,258,000/ 7 ( = % — /M 4 : 1,009,000
BIT) °

BERANENKREREEREFEE
1 77,500,000/% JT ) X IR 1T E K
47,000,000/ 7T &) & K 1% 18 & 3K T #

¥ o

BAZKRERAF

— =
—=
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6. Goodwill 6. W&

2015 2014

—E-EHF —E—F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FABT

Goodwill [EES 310,592 324,001

As at 1 January Kn—HA—H 324,001 333,052
Exchange difference MR =5 (13,409) (9,051)

As at 31 December n+-—A=+—H 310,592 324,001

The recoverable amount of each group of cash generating units (“CGUs”)
to which goodwill is allocated is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. Cash flow projections for the purpose of the impairment
review are based on budgets prepared on the basis of assumptions
reflective of the prevailing market conditions. Key assumptions used for
value-in-use calculation for each group of CGUs include:

(@)  Cash flows are projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(o)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rates included in the cash
flow projections range from 6.2% to 10% (2014: 5.0% to 10%).

(c)  Pre-tax discount rates as at 31 December 2015 which range
from 7.6% to 16.5% (2014: 7.6% to 12.1%) were applied in
determining the recoverable amount of the CGUs. The discount
rates used reflect the risk-free rates and the premiums for
specific risks relating to the business units to which the CGUs
relate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes in
the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount of
goodwill.

94 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2015

SEENSHEHERELAELM(RS
FE Sz ]) AT U Bl & AR BB E A
BEABTE ABERISAETHERESR
EFRADERERRBRER TR Z BRRR
HWEEET  FARCELENHE
TERBEMAEERREE:

@ REARERBEELEXENT
FEBEETEA -

(b) BFERIE ST ETER A FE A K =
FRERNF62%E10%(=F —
P04 : 5.0% ZE10%) °

© HRZE—RHF+-_A=+—HH
Br % BT BE 3R E N F7.6%E16.5%
(ZE—NE:76%E121%) ' B
BrEETEELXEMH KD
SE AR ERMEEERR
FERECELEMNHABESS

AL HHFE R R E o

EENTERREANEEREEEY
BAMRERKBENFE  HRER
SRR BERB(ELBUR) REHH
BERNBEHE -

ARBEREAG AEAH LTS
BRTAETEELNEY BTRE
AT S & A S AR B R -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R R B R ()

U
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #iZE —F—AF + - A=+—HILFE

7. REBARIZRE

R-E-—RAF+-_A=+—HBZEXEMWN

7. Investments in Subsidiaries

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as

follows: BARZFBERT
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
ML BRITRA FEERA T
£ B3t Bh FTEEBRKE I M EARFE BHE i
(Bt 77)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding, 4 ordinary shares of 100% —
Islands British Virgin Islands US$1 each
BEEBEABR QA EBEREHE REER AREREEIET
EREREHS 2 &R
Shenzhen VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT products  RMB100,000,000 100% —
Electronic Co., Ltd. in the PRC
RIBELEREET B R B 5 & A R 100,000,000 7¢
BRAA RHEL E
VST Computers (H.K.) Hong Kong Distribution of IT products 2 ordinary shares — 100%
Limited in Hong Kong
EHERK(EH) =B MEEDIHE 2 E B
BRAA RHL E
62,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
62,000,000 iz
BREREBLERD
Chong Qing VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT products  US$20,000,000 - 100%
Technology in the PRC
Development
Co., Ltd
BEERERARE [ A5 & 20,000,000 JT
ERAER DA RBHY E m
EECERARR PRC Project Investment RMB30,000,000 - 100%
BRAT in the PRC
P E L ERRR [ RAPEREBEFRE A K% 30,000,000 7T
BRAA
BUHERERAT —T-—HFF®H 95
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7. Investments in Subsidiaries (ontinuea)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as

follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. RMBARZRE @

R=ZF-AFT=A=T-RAZTEM
BAAZHBENT (&)

Particulars of issued share

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
HEMEL ERITRA FEEERE L
£ X 3L th B FTEEBRREE I S EARFE HiZ S
(K1at)
ECS Holdings Limited Singapore Investment holding 365,910,174 ordinary shares 100% —
and distribution of $$0.3088 each
of IT products,
provision of IT
services and
enterprise systems
in Singapore
EARBKBRAA N RETIE R ERE 365,910,174 %
ZHE - DI E B 5 % {E0.3088 %7 N 7T
Em - REEARR 2 &k
R 75 K b 2 R
EC Sure Holdings Thailand Investment holding 196,000 preferred shares, —  99.90%
(Thailand) Co., Ltd in Thailand non-accumulative
dividend, Baht 1.25 per
share; and 204,000
ordinary shares,
Baht 1.25 per share
EC Sure Holdings R E REBEREERELER 196,000 % & % [ 1B 1.25 Z= &k
(Thailand) Co., Ltd ZEBRER REIERET:
K204,000 % @ Ax HEI 1B 1.25
Tk LER
The Value Systems Thailand Provider of information 7,783,000 shares of — 100%
Co., Ltd technology products 10 Baht each
and services for
IT infrastructure
in Thailand
The Value Systems EiS BB SRR E & 7,783,000 f%
Co., Ltd B AR B %t BREME10FRHK
Rk 75 4 e 7 pdi b
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Investments in Subsidiaries ontinueq)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as

follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. RMBRARZRE @

R-E—hF+_A=+—HZEEMW
BRARZHBWT : (&)

Particulars of issued share

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR BRITRA FEEERI L
£ B 3L ith B FTEEBRKE I FMEARFESE HiE =
(Kt at)
ECS Computers Singapore Provider of information 13,600,000 ordinary shares — 100%
(Asia) Pte. Ltd technology products of S$1 each
and services for IT
infrastructure in
Singapore
ECS Computers 7N M AR EM K 13,600,000 0% & % E &
(Asia) Pte. Ltd BB R R 1IN T 2 B AR
PR 75 e 7
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) Singapore Retail of information 150,000 ordinary shares — 100%
Pte Ltd technology products, of S$1 each
IT equipment and
accessories in
Singapore
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) & il RETMEHEEMBIE 150,000 0% & i @ E
Pte Ltd Em - BAEERE 1 N3 T 2 AR
R HZE
Isan System Pte Ltd. Singapore Provision and distribution 2 ordinary shares — 100%
of information technology ~ of S$1 each
products and general
trading of IT equipment
in Singapore
Isan System Pte Ltd. 7N T ET D% 1R 4 2 5 4 2 M EE 1 0K T
BB ER RIS 2 E Rk
— BB RE
25
ECS Enterprise Solutions Singapore Distribution of Information 5,000,000 ordinary shares — 100%
Pte Ltd technology products of S$1 each
and services for
[T infrastructure
in Singapore
ECS Enterprise Solutions #f il 3% PRFT AN 5 85 E R 5,000,000 A%
Pte Ltd o R E B AR GREE1FTME T
BT 2R e AR 75 =% i)
BHERERAR —ZT—AFFHR 97
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98

Investments in Subsidiaries (continueq)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as

follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Principal activities and

7. RMBARZRE @

R=F-HFT=A=+-RAZEEH
BAAZHBENT (&)

Percentage of

Particulars of issued share interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR BRITRA FEEEREI L
£ BX 3L tth B FTEERRKEE I M EARFE HiZ =
(Kt at)
ECS Technology (China) Hong Kong Investment holding, 11,500,000 ordinary shares — 100%
Limited provider of information
technology products
and services for
[T infrastructure
in Hong Kong
EARRE(PE) HE KREER BEEM 11,500,000 A& & i A%
BRAA BHEREmKEEMEHR
B R e RIS (e
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$10,000,000 — 100%
(Guangzhou) technology products
Company Limited and services for
[T infrastructure
in the PRC
BIMNERB AR AR FE B E AR E @ & 10,000,000% 7T
BB RERRE
BR 75 fE 7
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$1,282,000 — 100%
Company Limited technology products
and services for
[T infrastructure
in the PRC
BMMTERNEERE  FE BB & R E & 1,282,000% 7T
BRAA BB ER R
Rk 75 e 7
ECS (Shanghai) PRC Provider of information US$25,000,000 — 100%
Management Co., Ltd technology products
and services for
[T infrastructure
in the PRC
TE(LE)ER H W B & G RHRE & 25,000,000 7T
BRAA BARHE B E e
Rk 75 FE 7
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7. Investments in Subsidiaries ontinuea)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as

follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. REBARZRE®

R=ZF-AFT=A=T-RAZTEM
BAAZHBENT (&)

Particulars of issued share

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
HEMER L BRITRA FEEEREI L
£ BX 3L tth B FTEERRKEE I M EARFE HiZ =
(Kt at)
ECS China Technology  PRC Provider of information US$15,000,000 — 100%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd technology products
and services for
[T infrastructure
in the PRC
EARK(EE) B BB Em & 15,000,000% 7T
BRAA AR EREE
BR 75 fE 7
ECS Technology (HK) Hong Kong Provider of information 10 ordinary shares — 100%
Co., Limited technology products
and services for
[T infrastructure
in Hong Kong
BABEREH BB BEAEHARMBRER R 10 /% & 8 %
BRAA AR EREE
Bk 75 e 7
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd Singapore Distributor of information 2,000,000 and 24,785 ordinary — 100%
technology products shares of S$1 and
in Singapore US$1.8156 each
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd N3 N E B E M 2,000,000 % 2 24,785 %
D EHE Bl BIEE T
K.1.81563 T # & i X
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distributor of information 100,000 ordinary shares of — 100%
technology products US$1 each
in Indonesia
PT ECS Indo Jaya EIfE EE & B E m 100,000 & & IR E{E 17T
pa:=1i 2R
BHERERAT —T-HEFEF®H 99
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7. Investments in Subsidiaries continueo) 7. REBARZRE =
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as RZE—RAE+-_A=+T—HZEZEMN
follows: (continued) BARZHBWOT : (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR BRITRA FiEERBE DL
£ B 3L ith B FTEEBRKE I M EARFE HiE =
(Kt at)
ECS Infocom (Phils) Singapore Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of S$1 each - 100%
Pte. Ltd in Singapore
ECS Infocom (Phils) TN RETME R EREER 2KREREEIFINET
Pte. Ltd 2 E Rk
ECS Chongging PRC Electronic settlement US$10,000,000 — 100%
Marketing & payment business centre
Co., Ltd and provider of

information technology
products and services
of IT infrastructure

in PRC
EEENABEHLEHE P PEEFAEEFmBH L 10,000,000% 7T
BRAF NMEABISERR
BB AR
AR 75 1 FE 7
Note: Bta -
All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established in the BRPABEKZIHOMBRARAIIIBELE
PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises SN FTBMBARIYABREMTRAA
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8. Interest in Associates 8. REEEQNTNER
2015 2014
—E-RF —E U
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T T
Unlisted kL
Share of net assets DEFEE 65,038 76,387
Loan to an associate Bk EANCIN=E 3,484 3,463
68,522 79,850
Listed outside Hong Kong EBUNMNMMELT
Share of net assets DIFEE 209,283 242,930
277,805 322,780
Market value of listed shares R TmE 207,230 196,070
The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured, BYHBMENTINERUNETHE XA
interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year. EEE . RERTNEHR—FAMKE -

BHERERATD —Z—HFF®R 101
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8. Interest in Associates (continueq)

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

4
For the year ended 31 December 2015 E — T —AF+ A=+ —HIEFE

8. REELNTIMNER

R-E—RAF+_A=+—HBHWHBEZ2Q

AR
Country of Particulars of issued Equity interest held by
Name incorporation Principal activities shares held the Group
% HEMEIER TEXHK FEERTROFES AEBFEZRE
2015 2014
—E-RF | —T0F
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc  Philippines Distribution of IT products 3,097,055 ordinary 49.99% 49.99%
shares of Peso
100 each
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc ~ JE2 & DIHEABHRE @ 3,097,055 %
AREE100H R
2 EEAR
ECS ICT Berhad Malaysia Provision of information 180,000,000 ordinary 41% 41%
technology and shares of RMO0.5 each
services for
[T infrastructure
in Malaysia
ECS ICT Berhad BRAD RERERE AR 180,000,000 %
R IR A AR & BREEISSE
PR 75 2 E B
None of the associates were considered individually material to the BMaEms A AR ENmEHEAHAEE

Group. The aggregate carrying amount of associates in the
consolidated financial statements is disclosed above. Aggregate

BEXR -ZEFAVBRRPAHHZ
RAZBEEERLEXRE - A&ES

102 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

financial information (the Group’s share) of these associates is as MZEBERAZERTENBER N
follows: ™~

2015 2014

—E-HF —ZE—OF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FERT FHET

Profit from continuing operations & 18 48 s A 34,686 34,939

Other comprehensive income H b 2wl A (46,992) (18,881)

Total comprehensive income FHERALE (12,306) 16,058
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Interest in a Joint Venture 9. REELXENER
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Share of net assets DIRFEE 55,211 67,385
Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2015 are as follows: RZZE-—RAF+T_A=T—BHHEE®

E¥FBOT

Particulars of

Country of registered and Equity interest held by
Name incorporation Principal activities paid-in capital the Group
% HEMEIER TEXH EMREHELRFS rEBAEZRE
2015 2014
ZE-RF | —TWF
Bozhou Botong PRC Research and development, RMB155,000,000 38.03% 51.26%
Information production and sale of
Technology smartphones and computer
Co., Ltd peripheral product
ZMNmERES FHE e EERIHE S A K% 155,000,000 7T
BEAR AT F % B E K R AB E
Bozhou Botong Information Technology Co., Ltd is the only joint ZMNTEHBEENBERAAALSE
venture in which the Group participates and it is not considered SHEEBOE——HEGEEE UIH
material to the Group. Financial information (Group’s share) of this joint BEAEEKRKEREBE RN - AEEDLHZES
venture is as follows: B TBBERNT
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Loss from continuing operations HEKLER (13,676) (5,415)
Gain on deemed disposal RAEH BRI E 3,657 -
Other comprehensive income HEi2mmlkA (2,155) (1,416)
Total comprehensive income 2HERA LR (12,174) (6,831)
On 18 September 2015, the Group and the other joint venturers RZE—RAFNA+TNA AEEBEA
entered into an amended joint venture agreement, pursuant to which HEETrECIULBIAELEW
the total investment in the joint venture was increased from OB AR ME BB ER L
RMB115,000,000 to RMB155,000,000, with capital injected by a new WEE(TER2HALDENEL)TE
investor who does not participate in the operation of the joint venture. il AR 8115000000 7T N E A B
The capital injection was certified with a capital verification report dated %155 000,0007C - XS T E D KA A

26 October 2015. The Group recognised a gain on deemed disposal of

—E— —+ R BE®REZ
HK$3,657,000 in respect of this transaction. BETA-FTAAZRARE K

B AEEARETHBRBRELENK
7 3,657,000/ JT °

BAZKRERAA —FT-AFFH 103
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10. Trade and Other Receivables

10. E5 R H b B W IE

2015 2014
—E-RF —E U
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FHET
Trade receivables, net 2 5 EWFIEF5E 7,702,999 6,699,257
Other receivables and prepayments H b e W 3k T8 K TR AN B 855,104 945,196
Deferred expenses (Note 16(d)) EER X (M aE16(d) 9,795 18,937
8,567,898 7,663,390

Less: Non-current deferred expenses Jk JEBNERIEAE B S
(Note 16(d) (Kt &£ 16(d) (3,884) (5,876)
8,564,014 7,657,514

The Group grants credit periods to third party customers ranging from
7 to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers
depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the Group.

AEBGRTE=ZNTEPZEEHNF7
E1I50R MEEEFZEEHATE
E RIFRFEREERZIRZFERNTRK
LEME - BFRERBFEREREA

The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date is as

follows: HE R BERER DT ¢
2015 2014
—E-EF —ZE—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FiET
0 - 30 days 0% 30H 4,075,671 3,700,414
31 - 60 days 31£60H 2,098,333 1,744,948
61 — 90 days 612900H 675,494 513,706
Over 90 days HBiEo0H 853,501 740,189
7,702,999 6,699,257
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10. Trade and Other Receivables continueq) 10, EZ REMEWRKIE»

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of HK$1,765,791,000 (2014: RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H B2
HK$2,156,346,000), which were fully performing, were past due but B1THE 5 & U F I 1,765,791,0007% 7T
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for — T — Y4 :2,156,346,0007% L) B i1
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these HERRBE ZEREEZZEIEP

B REUEBOIMEOLE - ZFE
5 W R IR TZ B B H &9 wY BR il O 4T 40

trade receivables by due date is as follows:

T

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
0 - 30 days 0£30H 1,090,855 1,615,185
31 - 60 days 31E260H 265,787 304,321
61 — 90 days 61£290H 121,090 169,677
Over 90 days HiEmooH 288,059 167,163
1,765,791 2,156,346
As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of HK$254,184,000 (2014: RZE-—RE+_A=+—H EFE
HK$220,913,000) were impaired and full provision has been made. The Ui 3% 1 254,184,000 T ( — & — /O 4 :

220,913,000 T) ERE " L EFEL 2
HEE ZSERFBREZAHE S

ageing analysis of these receivables by invoice date is as follows:

RBRER DT T -
2015 2014
—E-EHF —E-OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT FHET
61 — 90 days 61290H - 6,462
Over 90 days im0 H 254,184 214,451
254,184 220,913

BAZRERAXA —F—

TFEFH 105



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 E — T —AF+ A=+ —HIEFE

10. Trade and Other Receivables (continueq)

Movements of the provision for trade receivables are as follows:

10. EZ REMEWRKIE»

BHRBAERBNESHOT

2015 2014

—E-HF —ZE—OF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAET

At 1 January n—H—H 220,913 241,369
Net provision and receivable written off A % B WU 8 F R 46,504 (14,769
Exchange difference fE 5 =% (13,233) (5,687)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—8H 254,184 220,913

All of the above provision relates to trade receivables that were

individually determined to be impaired.

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to historical
information about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties

have not had significant defaults in the past.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were denominated

in the following currencies:

P Lt 18 1 15 B {E] ) 7 5E /% % HE BRURR
BENEZEBKREER -

BERBMRBENE S & HE AR KA
ERERTNZ2EXZHFHRBEELE
ERFE -RAEXZEFBAELEEX
B

55 F Ao 7 0 3K 98 B LMD B
B

2015 2014
—E-EHEF —E—NF

HK$'000 HK$’'000

FTHxT FHET

HK$ T 27,088 46,467
RMB AR 5,766,198 5,080,747
US$ ET 1,250,078 1,063,079
S$ N T 441,346 396,143
THB B3 659,725 709,615
RP ENfeE 419,579 361,463
8,564,014 7,657,514

As at 31 December 2015, included in other receivables and
prepayments was an amount of HK$71,851,000 (2014: HK$Nil)
representing investments in unlisted equity interests which are carried
at cost.
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10. Trade and Other Receivables continueo) 10. B 5 & H fih FE YL FIE ()
Included in other receivables is an amount HK$1,603,000 (2014: EMmERRNEEFATEEEN ST
HK$1,321,000) which related to derivative assets. 1,603,000/ L (= & — Y 4 : 1,321,000

BIT) °

11. Inventories " =78
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Inventories on hand held for re-sale REHEBEEFHETE 3,275,625 2,543,210
Inventories-in-transit EERFE 698,348 541,902
3,973,973 3,085,112
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is BRERIZ2FESBE 2 TEHAM

shown in note 21. 21 ¢

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 BEREAESEEY

2015 2014

—E-RF T

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Cash at bank and in hand RITREFRE 3,153,002 1,471,361
Short-term bank deposits (Note (a)) BEIRITE R (M 77 (3) 80,725 23,750
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEED 3,233,727 1,495,111
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12. Cash and Cash Equivalents (ontinueq)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were denominated

REBHERBEEEY

e kRS EYERAMEN T LT

in the following currencies: & :

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
HK$ BT 51,293 93,098
RMB (Note (b)) AR (K15 b) 1,195,575 820,150
Us$ ETT 1,792,885 340,666
S$ N T 179,811 195,860
THB B 6,626 23,383
RP HEE 7,537 21,954
3,233,727 1,495,111

Notes: Bfat -
(@  The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.33% (2014: @ RERTERZERFHNXRB0IZ%
0.37%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity of 8.93 days (ZZE—F :037%) c ZETFRZF
(2014: 8.82 days). HEH A ASISAH(ZZT —UF 882

H) e

()  The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in RMB are ) AEBUAARBHEZRITEHET

deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds
out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the government of the PRC.
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13. Share Capital 13. R
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE-MEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FAET
Authorised: JETE
2,000,000,000 (2014: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000 (= ZF — L 4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 2,000,000,000) % & %
HECAB Lz B 200,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EETRBREZERER
2015 2014
— —E-MEF
Number of issued Number of issued
ordinary shares ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each Par value of HK$0.1 each Par value
SREEIBT FREEC1E T
ZORITEBER ZEBTTAR
A H{E £ = [E)El
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
At 1 January n—HA—H 1,525,187,998 152,519 1,494,043,998 149,404
Issue of new shares BATHAR 1D
(Note (a)) (Bt 7 (a)) - - 32,000,000 3,200
Share options exercised & 771 i % 1
(Note (b)) (K& ®) 240,000 24 240,000 24
Repurchase of own E-AEpNEg il
shares (Note (c)) (B &t () (70,072,000) (7,007) (1,096,000) (109)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 1,455,355,998 145,536 1,625,187,998 152,519
Notes: Hiat -
(@) Issue of shares (@) TR S

On 27 November 2014, the Company issued 32,000,000 new shares at a
consideration of HK$80,000,000. The incremental costs for the issue of
shares amounted to HK$886,000. Net proceeds from the issue of shares
amounted to HK$79,114,000 of which HK$3,200,000 was credited to
share capital and the balance of HK$75,914,000 were credited to the
share premium account.

RZE—WNF+—A=Z++tRH ARQF
LA X {& 80,000,000 7t % 7732,000,000
R BHITRD ZEIKE B
886,000/% 7T ° BT 10 2 FT 15 3R B F
¥ /79,114,000 7T+ H 3,200,000
JCET ABX AR o T #2 #675,914,00078 JT 81
FTARBDEER -
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13 Share Capl’[al (continued)

)

110 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Shares issued under share option scheme

On 20 April 2015, options were exercised to subscribe for 240,000
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$534,000 of
which HK$24,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of
HK$791,000 were credited to the share premium account. HK$281,000
has been transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.16(d).

On 28 October 2014, options were exercised to subscribe for 240,000
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$535,000 of
which HK$24,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of
HK$759,000 were credited to the share premium account. HK$248,000
has been transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.16(d).

Repurchase of own shares
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company repurchased its
own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

13. BRA& )

(®)

BRI AR B BT (D
R-ZZTE—RFMNA-+H BREE
1718 LA % X {8 534,000 T R B A R 7
240,000 % & i@ % -+ H 124,000/ T &1
AR 7K+ [ 82 58791,00078 T B 51 A BR
3% B Bk © 281,000 7T B 1R & #5711
i 5E2.16(d) M) 2 5T BUSR 18 & A 8
ERMEER -

R-ZZE—NWE+A -+ N8B B
T8 17 1 DA #2 X {& 535,000 7T R BE A A
7]240,000 8% & i@ A% + E 24,0007 JT
sF ARR AN - T f 58759,0005% 7T Bl 5 A
% 1 34 {8 BR ° 248,000 JT & 18 ¥ M 5%
2.16(d) FT 8L B0 & 5T BUR 1 & 2 7 5 85 18
ERHGEER-

% B AN & j%
R#EE—Z—RF+_A=+—H81
FEN - ANQARERZFTELEEAK SR
BT

Number of Aggregate

ordinary shares Highest price Lowest price purchase price

Month of repurchase repurchased paid per share paid per share paid
B e e 21

e A4 ZERYE ERBSER ERBEER RBEER
HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

July 2015 e 1,470,000 2.49 2.30 3,519,040
August 2015 —E-RENR 7,068,000 2.20 1.99 14,661,100
September 2015 —T—RFNA 61,084,000 2.26 2.07 138,934,420
October 2015 —E-—RFT+A 450,000 2.18 2.1 973,400
70,072,000 168,087,960

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company repurchased its
own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

REE-_ZT—HmHF+_A=+—HL
FEN - ANQARERZFTEEE A SR
BT -

Number of Aggregate

ordinary shares Highest price Lowest price purchase price

Month of repurchase repurchased paid per share paid per share paid
BEE e e 21

BBE A5 ZER™AE BERESER BREEE® BEBEEE
HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

May 2014 —E-NFHA 1,036,000 1.65 1.64 1,708,480
June 2014 —ZE—MHEXA 60,000 1.88 1.64 112,320
1,096,000 1,820,800
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13 Share Capl’[al (continued)

©)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of the

13. A )

d) RHBEEHRARIPARKRTEZE

reporting period % % £F B
Exercise price 2015 2014
Exercise period TEH ITEE —E-HF —E—E
17 February 2013 to —E—=%=-A++tRA=ZE HK$2.227 11,760,000 12,000,000
16 February 2021 e e = AN = 222787
23 March 2013 to —E-=ZF=ZA=Z+=ZHZE HK$2.028 4,920,000 4,920,000
22 March 2021 —E - —F=ZA=+=H 2.028% 7T

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company. Further details of these options are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

(@)

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April
2002 has expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 whereby the
Directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite employees (including both full time and part time
employees, and Executive Directors), Non-executive Directors,
suppliers, customers and other corporations or individuals that
provide support to the Group (as defined in the new share option
scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the new share option scheme
may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The subscription price is determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s ordinary shares; (i) the closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and (iii)
the average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer. The vesting period of the options from the date of
grant is determined by the Directors and the options are then
exercisable within a period of ten years including the vesting
period, if any. Each share option gives the holders the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

No share options were granted under the New Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

BOEREOETRBEARBARA
—REBRZEN  ZERBEE—
THBHRPBHMRME 14

14%%@&@2%%%%

E

(@) ZARQABRESS

ARRE-_ZTZT-_FWOA+LH
Ry — AR IR BIZ S Ew -
ARABE_FT-—RAFNAZT=
BB B R RT 8 (T3t 80
Bt ARBETERENBESD
BE(BEZBEFBEERS QT
=) FuTES HER TP
EHAEERHEIEZHEML AR
AR A £ (GE& R 3B R Es &)
EMBRE URBEARAZK
e RBFBERAE ST FREEZ
BREmTPEzESROBE T
BSHAXRARDETRAZI0% -
RBERARREFTGEE 18
ALRTIZzBBE (AR AH
WA EE ()24 B EI A
BHBRARERMINZARA
BEBRKTE: RN EZZNAR
PR AEEEABMIABELE 2T
BHmEXRMIZAREEBBRF
BRTHE - REFET BREN
SEHERL AL BRER
BRTFEZHEATFIE(BRE
FEH(WA) SOHERESE
THEARBARA —BRERAR
ZRER o

4 IR ST R R AT BN B E =
T—REF-A=+—RILEER
12 4 £ (AR
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments coniinvey 14 AR XIT 2R EE

=,
F;IE ()
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continueq) @ ArABERESTS @
()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, () WUTAEELZERREE:
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of Bl BE-ZF—AF+=
shares for the year ended 31 December 2015: AR=+—HILHE FIEH

BREDNED BN EE

Outstanding Exercisable
Outstanding  Exercised asat asat Exercise Contractual ~ Remaining
asat during 31 December 31 December price Vesting termof  contractual
Date of grant 1 January 2015 the year 2015 2015 (HKS) conditions options life
RZZ-1F RZB-1F R-F-IF
-A-H RER +ZA=Z+t-B tZR=t+-B i@ BRE H&
R AH o R AT fiid R TR ¥R (BRn) BERN RHES AHES
Directors 3
23 March 2011 —E2——fF=H 4,920,000 - 4,920,000 4,920,000 2.028 2 Years from 10 Years 5.23 Years
—t=H date of grant
EREAH 10F 5236
eieF
Employees k&
17 February 2011 —F—-F 12,000,000 (240,000) 11,760,000 11,760,000 2227 2 Years from 10 Years 5.14 Years
ZAtTtH date of grant
BREAS 10F 514%
Bit2F
16,920,000 (240,000) 16,680,000 16,680,000
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise FRETEERERITER
for share options exercised during the year was HK$2.17 Bz miEFHRER217E
(2014: HK$2.17). T(ZZ—MFE 247% L) °
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments coniinvey 14 AR B T 2R EE

=+,
FIE ()
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continueq) @ ZAAEERESE @
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, iy UTAEDZERERESE:
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of Bt B2 —HmWF+=
shares for the year ended 31 December 2014: A=+—BULFE FTEE

BREDUNED SR EE

Outstanding Exercisable

Qutstanding Lapsed Exercised asat asat  Exercise
asat during during 31 December 31 December price Vesting  Contractual Remaining
Date of grant 1 January 2014 the year the year 2014 2014 (HKS) conditions term of options  contractual life
RZZE-WF RZZ-NF RZZ-0F
-A-H RER RERN FZA=+-B +ZA=+-8  1FE BhE i
RHBEHS AT KM & R R (Bn) GE G ANES AHES
Directors 3
23March 2011 —F——% 5,400,000 (480,000) - 4,920,000 4,920,000 2.028 2 Yearsfrom 10 Years 6.23 Years
ZA=-f=H date of grant
BRILAH 105 6.23F
a2
Employees (3]
17 February 2011 —5——% 12,240,000 - (240,000) 12,000,000 12,000,000 2227 2 Yearsfrom 10Years  6.14 Years
ZAt+tR date of grant
ERLAH 105 6.14%
ik
17,640,000 (480,000) (240,000) 16,920,000 16,920,000
(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS b)) MMBARS —EARBEER
Holdings Limited (“ECS”) BRAaal ([EARE]D VB
iz #E T &
The Company’s subsidiary, ECS, had a share option scheme, RRABIKMEARENBEERE —
which ceased to be in force upon the privatisation of ECS by the EHERERE - RARFAR T —
Company in February 2015. AFEZARBIENEEE - ZE
EIETHAER -
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See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the nature and

purpose of reserves.

Annual Report 2015

15. Reserves of the Company 15. XD A%
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each REBBEERSKONFEN RFRE
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the BONEEHNRGAEREYR - AFE
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Detalils of the changes in RBTFERARASRERDBOET R
the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning FREGZFBHINNAT
and the end of the current and prior years are set out below:
Capital
Share redemption Retained
premium reserve Capital reserve earnings Total
BRHEE BEBEERE BEARRE RERF Foy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FET FHET FHExT
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(M &%) (B a%) (Kt 5%)
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZZT—O4F
—A—HiER 758,001 — 19,928 182,999 960,928
Profit and total comprehensive F s &
income for the year FERABE - - — 34,827 34,827
Issue of new shares BITH KRG 75,914 - - - 75,914
Dividend paid AR 2 - - - (119,524) (119,524)
Share options exercised O T (B AR A 759 - (248) - 511
Share options forfeited or lapsed & 38 Uk 5 % &%
R RS - — (529) 529 -
Repurchase of own shares LRI )
— Par value paid —BEfEE - - - - -
— Premium paid —BfEE — - — (1,712 (1,712
— Transfer between reserves — REEEER - 109 - (109) -
Balance as at 31 December 2014 R —Z — P F
tZA=+—H
B 45 B 834,674 109 19,151 97,010 950,944
Balance at 1 January 2015 R-ZZE—HF
—A—HW&E# 834,674 109 19,151 97,010 950,944
Profit and total comprehensive F A A &
income for the year E2EKRABE = - - (9,774) 9,774)
Dividend paid AR 2 - - - (180,001) (180,001)
Share options exercised O T (B AR AE 791 - (281) - 510
Repurchase of own shares BB AN & BR 9
— Par value paid —BEfEE — — _ _ _
— Premium paid —BftEE — — — (146,081) (146,081)
— Transfer between reserves — EEEER — 7,007 - (7,007) =
Balance as at 31 December 2015 R =T —F 4
+=-A=+—H
B 45 24 835,465 7,116 18,870 (245,853) 615,598
Note: Bfat -

ERRHEZHEREN BAGEERED

RMFE -
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16. Trade and Other Payables 16. EZRHEMENRE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E U
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Trade payables B 5 A 6,745,574 5,054,770
Other payables and accruals HAtb JE T FIB K FE R RUE 523,411 427,186
Deferred income (Note (d) PEIEW A (B 73 () 12,253 21,660
7,281,238 5,503,616
Less: non-current deferred income (Note (d)) R FEBDERIR IE MR A (MY 7% (d) (4,994) (7,502)
7,276,244 5,496,114
(@)  The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 @ AEBEZzZEHEEBRAASEERLZ
days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables by EEHBNFI0EW0H- B 5 EN
invoice date is as follows: REZRFEZEHE D ZER D

UNNE

2015 2014
—g-8% | —T-ms
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FiET
0 - 60 days 0&60H 6,674,686 4,988,507
Over 60 days HB#E6e0 70,888 66,263
6,745,574 5,054,770
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&z =
16. Trade and Other Payables continued) 16. EZRHEMENRE
(o) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables were b)) BESKEMENKEBEERERENT
denominated in the following currencies: HEMEEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
HK$ BT 44,811 17,799
RMB AR 3,580,909 2,618,505
uss$ ETT 2,879,678 2,048,520
S$ N T 349,677 265,538
THB i 257,575 389,174
RP & 163,594 156,578
7,276,244 5,496,114
(©) Included in other payables and accruals is an amount ) E 4bpE S RIE K& FEE RRIA D 5t
HK$7,780,000 (2014: HK$2,710,000) which relates to forward ABBRBINESGON S E
foreign exchange contracts. The net notional amount of forward 7,780,000 ;L( = & — M F:
foreign exchange contracts has been disclosed in note 3.1(a). 2,710,000/ 7T ) ° R HASNE & B B

FEESHERMES1@EE -

(d) Deferred income and expenses relate to fees billed/paid in d BEERAERAYXERERSESH
advance on service maintenance contracts. MEBEAHARE STNBEEH-
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17. Deferred Taxation

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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17. IEEH 18

EREBEDRARER LR Y
-

The movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: REREEE/(BE)FEEZSHMT -
2015 2014
—E-&F — O F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
At 1 January n—A—H 17,610 17,275
Credited to the consolidated statement of HFAGZEBHER
profit or loss (Note 23) (Bt i£23) 18,446 (1,891)
Exchange difference MEH =58 (1,645) 2,226
At 31 December R+-—_A=+—H 34,411 17,610
Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FANELEHIEEERBBEAFEZSN
year are as follows: N
2015 2014
—E-&F —E—F
Deferred tax assets — Inventories andtrade EZEHREBEEE—FER HK$’000 HK$’000
receivables provisions ESREWRERE FERT FAETT
At 1 January n—A—H 54,033 54,578
Credited to the consolidated statement of HFAGZEBHER
profit or loss 9,334 (2,583)
Exchange difference EH Z5E (1,293) 2,038
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 62,074 54,033
BAEZERERLXE —Z—AFFH 117
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17. Deferred Taxation (continueq)

18.

118 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

17. EE R E )

2015 2014
—E-HE —T-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000

Deferred tax liabilities — Accelerated tax EERESE-MEHRE

depreciation and others ERHEA FTHT FAET
At 1 January n—A—H (36,423) (87,303)
Credited to the consolidated statement of SFAGZEETR

profit or loss 9,112 692
Exchange difference PE i = %8 (352) 188
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H (27,663) (36,4293)

Included in “others” are deferred tax liabilities recognised in respect of
undistributed profits of foreign investment enterprises in the PRC of

HK$23,362,000 (2014: HK$24,484,000).

[E BT ARPEOIIFRE
1 E B KRS IR & M R AR ERIE
B {5§23,362,000%8 (= T — M 4 :
24,484,000/ 7T ) °

H o
Borrowings 18. & &
2015 2014
—ZE-EF —T-EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 51 FERT FAET
Non-current FERE
Unsecured bank borrowings EIKBBEITEE (@) 985,311 -
Finance lease liabilities mEHEA®E (©) 492 376
985,803 376
Current RE
Unsecured bank borrowings EIKBBETEE (@) 4,570,123 3,532,379
Secured mortgage loan BEBIZIEER (o) 64,782 24,286
Finance lease liabilities mEHEAE () 306 235
4,635,211 3,556,900
Total borrowings wEs (d) 5,621,014 3,557,276
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18. Borrowings (ontinued)

Notes:

(@)

Unsecured bank borrowings

The loans are unsecured and bear interest at rates as disclosed in section
(e) below. As at 31 December 2015, the loans were repayable within
twelve months except for loans in the amount of HK$56,833,000 and
HK$928,478,000 which were repayable on 19 December 2017 and 6
September 2018. As at 31 December 2014, all of the loans are repayable
within twelve months.

Secured mortgage loan

The loan is secured by buildings with net book value of HK$199,514,000
as at 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$58,250,000). The loan contains a
repayment on demand clause and the portion of the loan to be repaid
after one year of HK$55,338,000 (2014: HK$20,722,000) is classified as
current.

Finance lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset
revert to the lessor in the event of default.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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18. i & )

(@)

EIFIRITIEE
ERAEERBERER T XM FEZ
ﬂxﬁaow_f AEF+-A=1

—B - BERERT_ERREE K
56,833,000,%n&928,478,0005%ﬁ2%?

DR —ZE—+t&F+ =BT AhA
EZZE—NFhLARHEZE R_ZF—
WE+—A=+—8 FFEERERN+
“EAREE-

BEERBER

RZE—RFE+=_A=+—H E5xXH
AR % 1E 4 199,514,000/8 T (Z & — 1Y
F : 58,250,000 7T) 2 B F IR MM -
I ERE B AR EREEE GRS
W — 4 & (88 M) 3B 19 B 355,338,000/

T (= ZF — P04 : 20,722,000 7T) 9 1A
AEDE -
MEREAE

HRENRBHEEENEASRET
HEA HEEREERAEA -

2015 2014
—E-AfF — L E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Gross finance lease liabilities BmEHEaBERR
— minimum lease payments: —REMRENE
Within 1 year 1FR 345 282
Between 1 and 5 years 1FE5F 525 452
870 734
Future finance charges on finance leases MEBRENRKHMES B (72) (123)
798 611
The present value of finance lease liabilities MEHEBBENRAENT
is as follows:
Within 1 year 1F A 306 235
Between 1 and 5 years 1F B4 492 376
798 611
BAEZERERL2E —Z—AFFH 119
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18. BOrrowings (ontinueq) 18. B & &)

Notes: (Continued) Wizt - (%)
(d  The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows: 0 FAEBEEENEEOT:
Bank borrowings Financial lease liabilities Total
BITEE MEHEEE &&t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF _—TNF ZB-RHF _—TUF ZT-HF _—_TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHET FHET FAET FHERT FHET
Within 1 year 1F R 4,634,905 3,556,665 306 235 4,635,211 3,556,900
Between 1 and 2 years 19 =24 56,833 — 232 376 57,065 376
Between 2 and 5 years 2EFEHE 928,478 - 260 — 928,738 —
5,620,216 3,556,665 798 611 5,621,014 3,657,276
(e)  The effective interest rates were as follows: e EBEBREMENT:
2015 2014
—E—-HEF —E—NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unsecured bank borrowings EIFIRITEE 1.62%-13.00% 1.34%-5.6%
Secured mortgage loan BIRHZBEER 1.48%-1.60% 1.39%
Finance lease liabilities HEHEERE 4.00%-5.74% 4.00%-5.74%
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values. BEENFEEEREAFEEE -
i The carrying amounts of the borrowings were denominated in the i} BEMNEmENTIEBHE:
following currencies:
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—MF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
HK$ BT 64,782 24,286
RMB AR 850,980 577,332
us$ ET 4,460,518 2,728,194
S$ ¥ nyg o 108,981 55,954
THB oS 20,104 170,901
RP E& 115,649 609
5,621,014 3,657,276
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19. Revenue and Segment Information 19. W K& 25 #E R

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent with
the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this regard,
the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs
within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the year is set out below.

(@) Business segments

The main business segments of the Group are the following:

DEERDERAEBE BB EITRE
BABSAEDIBERE RS AMBER
REMBEN —BZAAMBR - K&
BErEaEBTREEBAERESEE -3t
mME AEBEZEEETRERBAER
BRATELEZERAIRE D MBEIE 2%
7= .

WaH kAR REDBELENHER
MEEMRAXOEEZS D -

BN ZFENERDEES
ﬁ%B%EUFHEE’JIEE 1§IJXZD§

FAXRSERERD I LFEoBRA
ZAHREDHBERMT -

Segments Principal activities

2 FTEXEHK

Distribution Distribution of IT products (desktop PCs, notebooks, tablets, handhelds, printers, CPUSs,
hard disks, memory devices, etc) for the commercial and consumer markets.

ol DEARBENIHEED iﬁE’Jﬁﬂﬂ&E‘Euu (REEH - FRARER  FHREK 2

R ATENME P RERIERS TR

Enterprise systems

s o

SE-EES

Provision of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT servers,

databases, storage and security products) for IT infrastructure.

RERR HEAREMBEERZENDERS
BE - -BERRETER) -

IT services

& AR 5 BB ERRERT RBIT

FTE (PR RIERS - Uni/NTER S 28 - &1

IT infrastructure design and implementation, training, maintenance and support services.

ol e KRR o
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19. Revenue and Segment Information continuea)

(@) Business segments (continued)

19. EZzR D HBER =

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2015 are

@ EBnI=

HE-_ZT—RAF+=-AR=+—8H

as follows: IEFEMYHEENT -
Enterprise
Distribution systems IT services Group
ERBH

784 LERSK R 3% EE

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FHET FET FET FHET

Total segment revenue pol-i Gty 30,999,674 14,377,680 198,286 45,575,640
Segment results D E A 459,743 205,640 11,686 677,069
Finance costs B ER (139,738)

537,331

Share of associates’ profits 315 Bt & 2 734 7 34,686
Share of joint venture’s loss S 1A & ¥ B (10,019)
Profit before taxation R A A o A 561,998
Taxation fiE (111,617)

Profit for the year F & F 450,381
Reportable segment assets A 3R 75 5F & & 8,382,803 3,783,320 44,542 12,210,665
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19. Revenue and Segment Information (continuec) 19. W= K& 7 EE F @)

(@) Business segments (continued) @ X3
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2014 are HEz_Z—NF+=-_A=+—H
as follows: EFENSBEELOT

Enterprise
Distribution systems [T services Group
B2l iz TERG EARERS rEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FE&T FAET
Total segment revenue 7 2B U = 4B RR 30,573,837 11,100,914 217,958 41,892,709
Segment results DEBELE 644,091 189,708 10,098 843,897
Finance costs M5 ER (104,392)
739,505

Share of associates’ profits %3 15 i & A 734 7 34,939
Share of joint ventures' loss DR & & EEE (5,415)
Profit before taxation & B Al i 769,029
Taxation 18 (143,361)
Profit for the year F % F 625,668
Reportable segment assets ~ FJ #R &5 9 $ & & 7,384,372 2,709,451 42,029 10,135,852
The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one AEENEFPHZTIL EF %
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the RPBHEBRNEBRZI0%HF
Group’s revenue. Distribution revenue from this customer F-REZBEBEFHNDHRENE
amounted to approximately HK$5,767,000,000 (2014: 5,767,000,000/8 7T (= & — Y £ :
HK$6,918,000,000). 6,918,000,000/%& JT.) °

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss b)) AHREDIHEANHEER

s N

and assets EEMNHER
Profit il
Reconciliation of segment profit to the profit for the year in the EE RO aFEFEBEREME
consolidated statement of profit or loss is not presented as the T FEREFER  HITEZ25 5
segment profit is the same as the profit for the year presented in Hm Al s ABmERNFE RN E A
the consolidated statement of profit or loss . B4 AR o
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19. Revenue and Segment Information (continued 19 hazkosHER @
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss b AHREDHEAHEER
and assets (continued) BEENYR@
Assets BE
2015 2014
—E-FF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Reportable segment assets AIREDEHERE 12,210,665 10,135,852
Goodwill = 310,592 324,001
Interest in associates BN B R RE S 277,805 322,780
Interests in a joint venture RELEMRES 55,211 67,385
Deferred tax assets EEFIRE ZE 62,074 54,033
Other receivables and prepayments H b pE Uk 5008 K FE A IR 618,304 730,262
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEED 3,233,727 1,495,111
Consolidated total assets AR EE 16,768,378 13,129,424
(c) Geographical information  HEER
The Group’s two business segments operate principally in North REEBMOMEXES>HEELL
Asia and South East Asia. TNREEELE -
2015 2014
—E-RF T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Revenue Wz
North Asia it g8 36,798,568 33,195,293
South East Asia HFEas 8,777,072 8,697,416
Total segment revenue DEU B TR 45,575,640 41,892,709
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer WHBEEFFEBRREID

is located.
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19. Revenue and Segment Information (continuec) 19. W= K& 7 EE F @)

(c) Geographical information continued) © MHEER @
2015 2014
—E-EHEF —E N
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Assets BE

North Asia pidct] 9,978,254 8,064,477
South East Asia HEgo 2,232,411 2,071,375
Reportable segment assets AR E DI EE 12,210,665 10,135,852

Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the ARENEHEERBEEMEME S -

assets are located.

20. Other (Losses)/Gains, Net 20. Hth (E518) "W A F 5

2015 2014

—E-EF —ZE—-F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHx FHET

Interest income B A 14,120 16,618
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BEX

plant and equipment B Sk (406) (45)

Net exchange loss T 5, 5 185 58 (23,642) (18,788)

Other =) 7,239 12,554

(2,689) 15,339
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21.

22.

126 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Operating Profit 21, &R &R F
Operating profit is derived after charging/(crediting) the following: SRR e (GEA) A TS ER
15
2015 2014
—E—AF —E-mOF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Cost of inventories FERAR 43,878,639 40,165,374
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments BTN (BREEZMH®)
— Salaries, allowances and welfare —Fe - RURER 410,258 362,912
— Provident fund contributions —AHEESHK 57,196 52,331
Operating lease rentals in respect of MERERZ
premises and warehouses wEHERS 57,836 59,862
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 6D B &
— audit fees —EREH 4,805 5,917
— non-audit fees —FEZEH 957 1,114
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BEMRETE 22,369 19,513
Provisions for inventories €S- WEPN
(written back)/charged FEEE (52,732) 42,661
Net provision for and net write off of trade B 5 R W R IE BB R 8 E RE
receivables 58,478 34,054
Net foreign exchange loss b 5 5 1B 58
— excluding net exchange loss — T EEEM (BB, WAN
in other (losses)/gains E 5 518 558 176,587 29,385

The provisions for inventories written back in the current year resulted
from an increase in the estimated net realisable value of certain

inventories.

AEEMENFERE RN GET

FERERFEZIMATE -

Finance Costs 2. MBEHR
2015 2014
—g-85% | -—T-ms
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FET

Interest expense on: THEEZFERE :

— Bank overdrafts —RITEX 23 12
— Unsecured bank borrowings —EEHRITEE 138,960 103,975
— Secured mortgage loan —HEREEBER 704 362
— Finance lease liabilities —BMEHEEE 51 43
139,738 104,392
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23. Taxation 23. B8

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of profit RizeEmxBR 2 RMIBE2EIIIE -
or loss represents:

2015 2014
—E-EHE T — P04
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHER FHET
Current taxation RHABEIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBFER 9,784 36,455
— Overseas taxation — BHNEIE 106,437 104,163
(Oven)/under-provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax 381X 4 [& & & F /S 5 GREE & &)
in prior years SEBEETR (292) 4
Under-provision of overseas taxation BEFEEIGERETR
in prior years 14,134 848
Deferred taxation (Note 17) BT IR (it 17) (18,446) 1,891
111,617 143,361
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2015 is calculated at —E-RFREBNEGHEBEIREBEFA
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year, G EHPE R M AR T E16.5% (= F
taking into account a reduction granted by the Hong Kong SAR — M 165%) A E - WEAABTBRE
Government of 75% of the tax payable for the year of assessment ERAEEER=-F — ¢ Z—h E
2014-15 subject to a maximum reduction of HK$20,000 for each AHFEBRHNEMNEE FRMER
business (2014: a maximum reduction of HK$10,000 was granted for 20,0008 TR ER ER(ZZE—M4EF ! %
the year of assessment 2013-14 and was taken into account in R 10,0008 TR —F — = E
calculating the provision for 2014). FRUEFERL CEFAFE= g -
MY ) o
Overseas taxation has been calculated based on the estimated EONBIERF A 2 fhE EER TR R AR
assessable profit for the year at rates of taxation prevailing in the EEETEBLCEMERRERFNH X
countries in which the entities comprising the Group operate. ETHE -
A withholding tax of 5% is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect HAENIIERECER ST NE—
of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign investment A—B#ERIAERAEENREDIR
enterprises in the PRC earned after 1 January 2008. mmEER A W% HITERE o
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23.

24.

128 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Taxation (continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong

Kong as follows:

23. B IE )

AEEBRBANEN 2 HBERERTER
RRELZEWSBIERNT

2015 2014
—E-IF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAET
Profit before taxation B 753 A o A 561,998 769,029
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% BT E16.5%:HE 92,730 126,890
Effect of different tax rates in different tax TRBEEEERE TR R 2
jurisdictions =2 170 391
Income not subject to taxation HBAEZRH Z WA (7,279) (7,926)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes ~ FEH T 5 TSR 2 B X 8,500 12,498
Under-provision in prior years BAFTEREBETIREE 13,842 714
Tax losses for which no deferred tax assets WEREREEMRBEEDN
were recognised 18 s 18 439 1,510
Tax effect of withholding tax on profit of AR B B A Al I TR IR B Y
the PRC subsidiaries M2 3,215 9,284
Taxation charge MEXZE 111,617 143,361

Loss Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the

Company

2. XTI REBFBAEMN
s

The loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company to the extent of HK$9,774,000 (2014: profit of

HK$34,827,000).
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25. Dividends 25. & B
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the ) FRAELENTARQARE
Company attributable to the year HmEFEEARE
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Final dividend proposed after the end of the A R4 HA R 12 I R R HIRR &2
reporting period of HK12.4 cents R RER12.471
(2014: HK11.8 cents) per ordinary share — PO 11.8781l) 180,000 180,000

(i

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (ii)
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

3
e
o of
&

K&K R B B B X &
EEEE RBRIE-

FRRMERIKNY LR

FEEEENTAQGE
E?TEAHX/LA

2015 2014

—E-AF —E-mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

FAHOE KR BB E—B K
FEHRARESRERE
MBI (=T —HF
87 Ml)

Final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year, approved and paid during
the year of HK11.8 cents (2014: HK8
cents) per ordinary share

180,001

119,524

BAZKRERAF
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26. Earnings Per Share 26. BIR BRI
Basic HK
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based on the FRNEREARARFDEZEARARGERFS
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of A JE 165 5% F) 450,381,000/ 7T (=& — MM
HK$450,381,000 (2014: HK$607,374,000) and the weighted average F : 607,374,000 7T) KB EITRH Z
of 1,504,126,000 (2014: 1,496,419,000 shares) shares in issue. hn #E 15 801,504,126,000 % ( = & — [T

£ :1,496,419,000/%) st E B -

2015 2014
—E-AF —E-MmE
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—A—BERTERRK
(thousands) (F1&) 1,525,188 1,494,044
Exercise of share options (thousands) 1T R (F %) 338 42
Issued new shares (thousands) BEITHR G, (FR) - 2,981
Repurchase of own shares (thousands) BB A &R (TR (21,400) (648)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RAZA=+—B %@k
as at 31 December (thousands) 8 (FRR) 1,504,126 1,496,419
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) % 2 A & |
(BB 29.94 40.59
Diluted #E
The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based on FRNEREFRMNDERAARERZRF
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of B A FE 14 % #450,381,000% T ( = &
HK$450,381,000 (2014: HK$607,374,000) and the weighted average — [0 £F : 607,374,000 7T ) M & 19 ho 4
number of shares of 1,506,715,000 (2014: 1,496,672,000 shares), F 159 2 1,506,715,000 4% ( — & — 70 4F :
calculated as follows: 1,496,672,000 %) 5T & a0 T :
2015 2014
—E—FREF —E—NF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in & % 17 I 18 i% hn 1
issue (thousands) FHE(FRR) 1,504,126 1,496,419
Adjustment for assumed conversion of share R BRI R
options (thousands) A (&) 2,589 253
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for A% 858 B R 2 I
diluted earnings per share (thousands) naEFHE(FR) 1,506,715 1,496,672
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share) % 658 2 K
€295 1I)) 29.89 40.58
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27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EERSREEEMS
Emoluments
(@) Directors’ emoluments @ EE=Me
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to RERNENKENTFARAES
Directors of the Company during the year are as follows: e BRI
2015 2014
—B-EH4F —E-me
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FiET
Fees we 673 667
Other emoluments H A<
— Basic salaries and housing allowances —EAHEREEEM 9,641 9,716
— Discretionary bonus — B IEAL 5,352 4,845
— Contributions to pension scheme —RRET 2t 3 195 177
15,861 15,405
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 REE-_ZET—AF+_A=+—
December 2015 is set out below: AEFE SES2FME2 0
™
Basic salaries Contribution
and housing Discretionary  to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
BEXHER BIREHE
EEMNE e EEEH s AL R &5t

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
THEx TR THEx TERx TER

Executive Directors MITES
Li Jialin FEM - 5,200 2,000 18 7,218
Chow Ying Chi BRE - 1,182 1,630 141 2,953
Ong Wei Hiam, William EXEY 73 2,474 602 18 3,167
Chan Hoi Chau [ - 785 1,120 18 1,923
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Liu Li 2] 120 - - - 120
Liang Xin 2R 120 - - - 120

Independent Non-executive Y87 JEEN1TE &

Directors

Lam Hin Chi EEZHED 120 — - - 120
Li Wei e 120 - - — 120
Ng Yat Cheung 2HE 120 — - - 120

673 9,641 5,352 195 15,861
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27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (continued)

(@)

132 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31

1. EEREREEENE

(%)

(@

EEME @
REE-_T-—mNE+-A=+—

December 2014 is set out below: BIEFE SES2HMWHI @
T
Basic salaries Contribution
and housing  Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
EXEe R RREHE
EEHA we FEE=Z BB AT HR Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FAET FAL FAT FAET FAT
Executive Directors HITESF
Li Jialin EEM — 5,200 2,000 17 7,217
Chow Ying Chi F2li e — 1,152 1,363 126 2,641
Ong Wei Hiam, William TEN 87 2,592 750 17 3,446
Chan Hoi Chau BeR & M — 772 732 17 1,521
Non-executive Directors FNTES
Liu Li 2% 120 — — — 120
Liang Xin 2 120 — — — 120
Independent Non-executive YB3 JF#1TE =
Directors
Lam Hin Chi BB 65 - — — 65
Chan Po Fun, Peter PR 25 35 — — — 35
Li Wei e 120 — — — 120
Ng Yat Cheung RHE 120 - — — 120
667 9,716 4,845 177 15,405
Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include approximately ExXFEECEETWNEBEIN

HK$360,000 (2014: HK$340,000) paid to independent Non-

executive Directors.

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office during the year (2014: HK$Nil).

During the year, no Director of the Company waived any
emoluments (2014: HK$NIl).
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27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EERSREEEMS
Emoluments (continued) (&)
(b) Five highest paid individuals b EEZSHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AEBEBFAzREME R AL
Group for the year included two (2014: one) Directors whose BEMA(ZE—NF: —F)E
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The E - FEIHMeE RN EXFESZ
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2014: four) DR REE - RFRZNATFHB=
individuals during the year are as follows: FZ(ZE—MFE:WB)ALTZHE
LU
2015 2014
—E-AF —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FET
Fee ik 88 -
Basic salaries and allowances EXRH® RER 5,161 6,778
Discretionary bonuses B 15 e 4T 6,125 10,170
Contributions to pension schemes RIRETEIHE R 577 597
11,951 17,545
The emoluments fell within the following bands: BT T3 E -

Number of individuals

AE
Emolument band [ 2015 2014
—E-HF —T-EF
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7% JT & 4,000,000 7 7T 2 2
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7 7T = 4,500,000 7 7T - -
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7% 7T & 5,000,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 % 7T &= 5,500,000 & 7T - 1
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28. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 28. &= &

(@ Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (@)
generated from/(used in) operations

BEREBHmMRME

B B4 A1 0% I B AR & FT 187
(FFR)REFHE YR

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE R FAT
Profit before taxation 4 B2 Bl Y A 561,998 769,029
Interest income MEMA (14,120) (16,618)
Interest expense FE X 139,738 104,392
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENIEITE
equipment 22,369 19,513
Share of associates’ profits B N R F (34,686) (34,939
Share of joint venture’s loss DAL EEIE 10,019 5,415
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEDE - BEME&EZ
and equipment EiE 406 45
Operating profit before working capital EEESEHRI 2
changes 1w 685,724 846,837
Changes in working capital BEELEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& E b fE UK (904,508) (790,598)
Inventories TE (888,861) (440,662)
Trade and other payables ESREMENK 1,777,622 363,613
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations & & FT15,/(Fr ) IR & % 58 669,977 (20,810)
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29. Commitments

(@)

29. R IE

Capital commitments @ EAREIE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2015 not R-_E—RAF+_A=+—HH
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: KRR BT ANGTIREBE 2 KE
RNEREENT :

2015 2014
— —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Contracted for purchase of property DRI EmE — 120,613

Commitments under operating leases by BKERSET 2&IE
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had future aggregate RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H K
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases SEBRBETAIMBZEEHEEM
as follows: EEZAESERBEENRBBED

T

2015 2014
—B-EfF —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FHET
Within 1 year 1FE R 48,969 44,722
Between 1 and 5 years 1FEE54F 23,934 55,566
72,903 100,288
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and REBAZEMERUKLEHEE
items of plant and machinery and office equipment held under BAEZBRERBEHIARRAZR
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of BIBEE &M A - A 29 FH
one to three years, with an option to renew each lease upon —BE—E2=F RNEMHHELIH
expiry when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases BAEEBEBHTNERENER
includes contingent rentals. FrefER - BEBOBELAMN
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30. Related Party Transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@)

136 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Director’s quarter

The Group entered into a rental agreement with Joint Honour
Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li Jialin (“Mr. Li"),
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a major
shareholder, in respect of a director’s quarter. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of HK$200,000 to
Joint Honour Development Limited (2014: HK$200,000).

Motor vehicle

On 1 January 2015, the Group entered into a motor vehicle rental
agreement with Joint Honour Development Limited, a company
in which Mr. Li, the Chairman and Executive Director of the
Company is a major shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, the
Group paid a monthly rental of HK$15,000 to Joint Honour
Development Limited (2014: Nil).

License fee

The Group also entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind
Co., a company in which Mr. Li is a major shareholder. Pursuant
to the agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee of
HK$14,000 in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle License
to Kong Lung Ind Co. (2014: HK$14,000).

Key management compensation (including the
amounts disclosed in note 27)

Key management compensation amounted to HK$62,664,000
(2014: HK$72,329,000) during the year.
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0. BEALXRZF

NTREBEALTETZIRS

(@

EEER

REEHERARBDEFRNTES
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #iZE —F—AF + - A=+—HILFE

31. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 31. &< 2 B Bt ik % &R

As at 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—RF+=ZHA=+—H

2015 2014
—E-fHF —E—-F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt ax FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BE&E&E 935 1,081
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARIZEE 1,560,713 1,538,029
1,561,648 1,539,110
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments B A 309 309
Cash and cash equivalents BEMREEEY 47,695 140,761
48,004 141,070
Total assets BMEE 1,609,652 1,680,180
EQUITY =
Share capital A% 7 13 145,536 152,519
Reserves & 15 615,598 950,944
Total equity R 761,134 1,103,463
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAT — A BT JB & B3k IA 848,488 576,689
Other payables and accruals H qth fE A ZRIE & B R ROA 30 28
Total liabilities wmaes 848,518 576,717
Total equity and liabilities EEhEERE 1,609,652 1,680,180
Net current liabilities FEBEEFE (800,514) (435,647)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 761,134 1,103,463

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23

BEeRN T NFE-A-_+tZ=ZB#tE

March 2016. MR-
Li Jialin Chow Ying Chi

ZEM PRE

Director Director

EF EF

BAZRERAXA —F—

hFEFHR 137



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 E — T —AF+ A=+ —HIEFE

32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
%t%ffectlve for the year ended 31 December

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2015 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

32.

BE-2—H6+=F
ST -ALEEREA
Bk EN 2B -
2 51 ) 3 0 R R

BEEUHEMBHRR2TERAY FEE
M ASERMRBE_T—HAF+=
AZ+ - BLEFERARERBITRR
It 55 B 75 TR R R AR 2 BURE R DA R &
Al BREUATHREREEERE

Effective for

accounting

periods beginning

on or after

RTIBEHRzE

HROETHBENR

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle EF A M EREE T ——_F &2 - F—N 1 January 2016
FREBA 2 FERE —E—RF—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Saleor ~ &AW 58 & £ E 1058 R BB 58| 1 January 2016

contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture
Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for
acquisitions of interests in joint operations
Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification & & & 5H 8|5 16%: K &8 € 51 B § 38
WoOBBABEXCWERBE L Z2ET] —ET—~F—H—AH

of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers EBA SR EMERE1S5 K HEFE]
UEHZHA
BB BHREEAEI: 2@ T A

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z ==

33. Non-adjusting Events after the Reporting
Period

(@)

On 18 February 2016, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement to subscribe for a partnership interest of US$30
million (equivalent to approximately HK$234 million) in 3H Health
Investment Fund |, L.P., a Cayman Islands exempted limited
partnership (“The Fund”). The Fund mainly invests equity and/or
equity-related securities of companies that operate in the life
science and healthcare sector and related (either planned or
existing) technologies, products and services. The transactions
were not yet completed on 23 March 2016.

On 11 March 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with APAL Holdings Limited (“APAL”), a company
mainly operating in global aircraft leasing, aircraft trading,
securitised aircraft leasing financial products, aircraft parts
trading, maintenance of aircraft, dismantling aircraft and other
related consulting services, to subscribe for its shares. Upon
completion of the subscription, the Company will hold
300,000,000 shares, representing approximately 25.95% of the
total issued share capital of APAL, at a consideration of
US$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$234,000,000).

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Financial Summary

LU

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

AEBBELEYRERZXENREESR

last five financial years is set out below: BEBEHIN AT :
Results
Y 173 E
E 4
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
BE-Z-3fF |B2-F-NF HE-T-=F HE-T--F BE-_FT—F
+-A=+-8 | +=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—-8B +=ZA=+-H +=-A=+—H
LFE LE5E HEE HEE HEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET FHET FET FET
Revenue g &= 45,575,640 41,892,709 40,239,286 37,097,592 32,617,058
Profit before taxation % %% Bl % A 561,998 769,029 658,802 571,561 634,581
Taxation TIE (111,617) (143,361) (133,675) (107,162) (145,787)
Profit for the year F X% Fl 450,381 625,668 525,127 464,399 488,794
Attributable to: PATR A TR
Equity Shareholders of ARRERFAA
the Company 450,381 607,374 502,725 444,236 462,516
Non-controlling interests ElSuliiyr Ea - 18,294 22,402 20,163 26,278
450,381 625,668 525,127 464,399 488,794
Assets and Liabilities
EEREE
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
R-B-EHF RZT—M4F RZZE—=% RZE—=F RZT——%F
+ZA=+-8 | +t=ZA=+—8 +=ZA=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+-—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET FHET FET FET
Total assets BEE 16,768,378 13,129,424 11,527,662 9,847,426 8,545,115
Total liabilities #EE (12,949,271) 9,136,466 (7,907,262) (6,612,744) (5,747,886)
Total equity BER 3,819,107 3,992,958 3,620,400 3,234,682 2,797,229
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